The Governor’s Proclamation 20-28.1 regarding the Open Public Meetings Act and Public Records Act
temporarily prohibits in-person public attendance at meetings subject to the OPMA.
This proclamation is in effect through May 31, 2020, unless extended beyond that date.

A GoToMeeting has been arranged to enable the public to listen and make public comments remotely.
To participate remotely, please use the following call-in information: 1-877-309-2073, Access Code: 807-641-181

AGENDA

Port of Kennewick
Regular Commission Business Meeting
Port of Kennewick Commission Chambers (via GoToMeeting)
350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200, Kennewick, Washington

Tuesday, May 12, 2020
2:00 p.m.

l. CALL TO ORDER
1. ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL

I11.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record)

VI. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and ePayments Dated May 4, 2020
B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated May 12, 2020
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes April 28, 2020

VIl. EMERGENCY DELEGATION UPDATE (TIM)

VIII. NEW BUSINESS
A. Rural County Capital Funds (RCCF), Adam Fyall (T1M)

B. Approval to Sell and Convey Surplus Property; Resolution 2020-09 (NICK)

IX. REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Vista Field
1. Memorandum of Understanding with City of Kennewick re: Fire Station #3 (TIM)
2. Construction Update (LARRY)
3. Task Status Update (LARRY)



tel:+18773092073,,807641181

AGENDA

Port of Kennewick
Regular Commission Business Meeting
Tuesday, May 12, 2020
Page 2

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS (Continued)

XI.

B.

O

o fululle

Clover Island/Columbia Drive

1. 1135 Update (TANA)

2. Kennewick Waterfront Master Plan Update (LARRY/ ITIM)

U.S. Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration, CARES Act
Funding (TANA)

Communications with Public (TANA)

Director Reports (TIM/TANA/NICK/LARRY/ )

Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals)
Non-Scheduled Items

PUBLIC COMMENT (Please state your name and address for the public record)

ADJOURNMENT

PLEASE SILENCE CELL PHONES






PORT OF KENNEWICK
REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING

DRAFT APRIL 28,2020 MINUTES

Commission President Don Barnes called the Regular Commission Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. via
GoToMeeting Teleconference.

ANNOUCEMENTS AND ROLL CALL

Commissioner Barnes thanked everyone for joining today. This is our first meeting with everyone
participating remotely; so we appreciate your patience and understanding as we work our way through
this.

If you are listening to this meeting remotely, we appreciate your participation. To keep the background
noise down to a minimum, we ask that participants mute their phones. The agenda packet may be viewed
on the Port website if you would like to follow along. When it is time for public comments, it may be
difficult to determine who is speaking, so please be patient and respectful.

The following were present:

Board Members: Don Barnes, President (via telephone)
Skip Novakovich, Vice-President (via telephone)
Thomas Moak, Secretary (via telephone)

Staff Members: Tim Arntzen, Chief Executive Officer (via telephone)
Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy Chief Executive Officer (via telephone)
Amber Hanchette, Director of Real Estate and Operations (via telephone)
Nick Kooiker, Chief Finance Officer (via telephone)
Larry Peterson, Director of Planning and Development (via telephone)
Lisa Schumacher, Special Projects Coordinator
Bridgette Scott, Executive Assistant (via telephone)
Lucinda Luke, Port Counsel (via telephone)

Commissioner Barnes asked Ms. Scott if anyone from the public is listening in today.

Ms. Scott stated there are a few members from the public joining us. At this time, Boyce Burdick and
Cal Coie are joining us remotely.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Commissioner Barnes led the Pledge of Allegiance.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

MOTION: Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve the Agenda; Commissioner Moak seconded.
With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously. All in favor 3:0.

Page 1 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

PUBLIC COMMENT
No comments were made.

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Direct Deposit and E-Payments Dated April 17, 2020
Direct Deposit and E-Payments totaling $66,248.62
B. Approval of Warrant Register Dated April 28, 2020
Expense Fund VVoucher Number 102054 through 102080 for a grand total of $488,482.97
C. Approval of Regular Commission Meeting Minutes April 14, 2020

MOTION: Commissioner Novakovich moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented;
Commissioner Moak seconded. With no further discussion, motion carried unanimously. All in favor
3:0.

EMERGENCY DELEGATION UPDATE
Mr. Arntzen stated that there is nothing to report under Emergency Delegation.

REPORTS, COMMENTS AND DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Vista Field
1. Construction Update
Mr. Peterson reported that Total Site Services (TSS) continues to wrap up work at Vista
Field, involving lighting, electrical systems, and site clean-up activities. The final paving
activity occurred last Tuesday, to complete the alley off of Deschutes and mini patches in the
taxi lane area.

Mr. Peterson’s call was dropped.

Ms. Scott stated while we are waiting for Mr. Peterson to call back in, Gerry O’Keefe with
Washington Public Ports Association (WPPA) is joining us today as well.

Mr. Peterson reiterated that TSS continues with their work to complete the electrical system
for the street lights and the pump system for the stream. The final paving work was
completed last Tuesday, finishing an alley connecting to Deschutes and mini patches in the
taxi lane, that were cut for the electrical network. We can use the old taxi lane as a parking
area to support the hangar redevelopment project or whatever use is determined. We are
reusing some of the asphalt out a Vista Field going forward. Activities will progress into
mid-May due to some delays on miscellaneous items, due to the Covid-19 shutdown or slow
down related to some equipment supplies.

Commissioner Moak stated he is having a hard time hearing Mr. Peterson.

2. Task Status Update
Mr. Peterson stated included in the Agenda Packet is a five-page memo which identifies
multiple questions that need to be asked and answered before the Vista Field site is put out
to the private sector for marketing. The Port is seeking assistance from DPZ Partners in

Page 2 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Miami and Portland to assist us with those questions that will ultimately will be decided by
the Port Commission. Mr. Peterson is not proposing to work through the various questions,
he is just sharing the grocery list that DPZ Partners will be working through.

Commissioner Moak inquired how will the Commission deal with the questions in the
memo? Will it be at a separate meeting that we will go down the list and what is the thought
process behind trying to get a consensus on these very important questions.

Mr. Peterson stated the approach will be to discuss these with the DPZ team and then bring
them back to the Commission in bite size or manageable chunks, not all questions at the same
time. The thought is that the discussions with DPZ will occur in the month of May and the
Commission can expect to work through these questions in June and July. We anticipate
addressing the questions in segments related to the use, design, and marketing.

Mr. Arntzen had a chance to review the memo with Mr. Peterson and he thinks Mr. Peterson’s
plan of attack is to submit this list to the DPZ team, which includes Lizz Plater-Zyberk, Senen
Antonio, Michael Mehaffy, and Laurence Qamar. Staff is asking DPZ for input but to stop
well short of getting into answering the questions, because that is the policy realm of the
Commission. Mr. Peterson will farm the questions out to DPZ to mull over with back and
forth with Port staff, primarily Mr. Peterson and others as appropriate. Mr. Peterson will
then come back with bite size chunks to share any of the input he has received from DPZ.
Then, do that in a forum where the Commission could ask questions and offer comments.
The intent of staff is to be, at the end of this process, whether it is June or July, to have all of
these questions answered as policy matters by the Commission, relying on the information
that they believe is appropriate with some input from DPZ to offer some guidance. Mr.
Arntzen inquired if the Commission had comments or questions.

Commissioner Novakovich thanked Mr. Peterson, and stated he did a great job bringing these
questions to light and our job is probably to not try to answer these questions now until we
get further information from our experts, DPZ and whomever might assist us. Once we have
that input, base our answers on an intelligent and appropriate policy decisions once we
receive that. Commissioner Novakovich thinks for us to answer these questions right now
or try to formulate answers to them without more information would be a mistake.
Commissioner Novakovich thinks we may be leading the staff or the public, whoever, we
need to be responsible to for these, may be the wrong approach to these things. That is
Commissioner Novakovich’s suggestion on how we should approach this and he thinks he is
hearing that from what Mr. Arntzen said, but is not sure, but that would be the approach
Commissioner Novakovich would take.

Commissioner Moak is very interested in comments from some of these people who have
done projects like this, because he thinks they have some expertise in some of these areas
that we do not. And to be able to provide context on our own once we have heard from the
professionals would be entirely appropriate and he looks forward to hearing from them.

Page 3 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Commissioner Barnes agrees with what he heard Mr. Peterson say and it is his understanding
that the Commission is not being asked to make policy decisions now. We are being
informed that the plan is to involve DPZ to go back and revisit the Master Plan and revisit
some of these questions and some of these issues, now that we are much further along in the
redevelopment process. The Phase 1 infrastructure is nearing completion and Commissioner
Barnes would like to point out that this is an excellent opportunity to circle back to DPZ for
help, given that we are in the midst of this world pandemic. Commissioner Barnes thinks
that it is entirely possible that there could be significant changes that come out of this
pandemic. Changes in the way, for example, restaurants do business, changes in the way,
perhaps office spaces are occupied and utilized. Commissioner Barnes thinks there could be
significant changes and he thinks the Port of Kennewick would be remiss if we didn’t go
back and take a look, at a minimum, to check to see if there aren’t some major shifts or major
changes that can be anticipated that will take place as we emerge from this pandemic.
Commissioner Barnes really encourages this communication and interaction with our design
team and he thinks it is an excellent thing to do right now and go back and hear what they
have to say. Commissioner Barnes agrees with Commissioner Moak’s comments, we are
just the little Port of Kennewick and we haven’t done anything this ambitious before and we
are relying on our professionals to help guide us through this process. Commissioner Barnes
thanked Mr. Peterson for all of his work and he raised many excellent questions in his memo
and Commissioner Barnes strongly encourages and strongly supports this interaction, this
communication with DPZ, now that we are at this point in the project’s redevelopment.
Commissioner Barnes has said all along, let’s get it right, and it doesn’t have to be right now.
Commissioner Barnes thinks this is very important work and supports it and thinks its great.

B. Clover Island
1. Kennewick Waterfront Master Plan Stakeholders List

Ms. Peterson stated included in the Agenda Packet is a list of stakeholders for the Kennewick
Waterfront Master Plan, this is the initial list of stakeholders and at the last Commission
Meeting, staff asked the Commission to think of names to add to that list. Staff is seeking
additional names of agencies or individuals that the Commission believes should be contacted
directly by Makers Architecture through the outreach process. Mr. Peterson inquired if there
are any names the Commission would like to see added to that list and if so, what are those
names.

Commissioner Novakovich thinks what we need to do is not overburden a number of people
or individuals, for example, if the Port would like input from various commissions or
committees or staff members at the City of Kennewick, rather than list them all, we could list
the City of Kennewick and possible Marie Mosley as a contact and allow our staff to work with
the City. Commissioner Novakovich would (inaudible) is hoping, to add as possibilities...

Commissioner Barnes stated Commissioner Novakovich’s audio is drifting in and out.
Commissioner Novakovich would like to include Ben Franklin Transit, Benton Public Utility

District, and US Army Corps of Engineers. Those would be some of the ones Commissioner
Novakovich believes are potentials to add.

Page 4 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Commissioner Barnes confirmed that Mr. Peterson added those to the list.
Mr. Peterson added the names.
Commissioner Moak sent his list to Mr. Peterson via email.

Commissioner Barnes stated there are a couple of entities that he can think of that should be
added to the list: Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation, who have been an
excellent partner to the Port of Kennewick over the years. It would be well to include the
Eastern Washington Historical Society (the museum) to see if they might have any input. We
had an excellent relationship with the Latino Heritage Mural Committee, perhaps some of the
participants in that committee could be invited to provide input on this as well. Commissioner
Barnes thinks that...he likes the idea that people that have been long term advocates for the
betterment of our community and one name he can think of, if he is available and would like
to participate, would be Ed Frost. Commissioner Barnes stated those are the people that he
thought of that could perhaps be added to the list.

Commissioner Moak stated Mr. Frost was on his list too and he did speak with Mr. Frost and
he was interested in being contacted. Mr. Frost was on the original Clover Island Master Plan
many years ago, that Makers did.

Commissioner Novakovich thinks we could possibly, he thinks it’s great to send all of these
recommendations, but he wonders if the Commission could allow staff the flexibility to narrow
the focus. Commissioner Novakovich thinks we have a budget for this and he would hate to
see Makers...he knows the Port wants input from as many people as possible, but perhaps, a
lot of these that we send could be grouped into, where one spokesman would be all that Makers
need to talk to. This is just a suggestion and Commissioner Novakovich stated he would like
to see it move along and not drag out forever about trying to talk to every possible person that
could be involved or have input.

Mr. Peterson thanked the Commission for the lists of names and one way or another, whether
it is direct communication via Makers or invitations to all of the folks to upcoming public
events, in whatever form that that occurs. This group of stakeholders will be included in the
process to consider the Kennewick Waterfront Master Plan.

Commissioner Moak stated the concern that he had was he was not sure exactly, in what format
Makers was going to try to contact people. Commissioner Moak recalls discussing, because
of the Covid Virus, that there was a good chance that it was not going to be in person interviews,
but he wasn’t sure and he thinks the Commission was not given much instruction as to whether
the intent was an email or the intent was an in person phone call or what the extent of contact
was going to be. Commissioner Moak was not sure of the process and how Makers was going
to proceed with that.

Page 5 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Commissioner Barnes heard the concerns voiced by Commissioner Novakovich and at the
same time he understood Mr. Peterson to say that there will be some open sessions, where
perhaps the public would be invited and if some of the names on list provided today, if they
could receive an invitation to one of these, then it wouldn’t necessarily add to the number of
people that would be contacted individually by Makers during this process. Nonetheless, the
individuals on the list would receive an invitation and opportunity to provide their input, in
say, an open public setting.

C. Posting Commission Meeting Audio Update

Ms. Scott thanked the Commission for their patience with this project and she feels the final
product is a great tool for transparency and will help staff to be more efficient as well. To get our
system in place, it took 33 hours of staff and consultant time to review, select, and implement the
system. Salaries for staff and the consultant cost approximately $2,800 and the software is $2,400
per year. Our new system is in place and this meeting will be posted on our website tomorrow
morning. Ms. Scott would like to thank the Commission for meeting individually with her last
week to review the examples of what our system will look like, as we are not using the share my
screen feature today. As you saw, the Agenda for each meeting will be linked to the audio
recording and can be operated easily. Ms. Scott also emailed a link to the Port of Walla Walla’s
recordings to Boyce Burdick last Friday so that he could see what our new system will look like.
Ms. Scott followed up with a phone call to Mr. Burdick on Monday and he was pleased with the
ease of searching and listening to the meetings and thought it was a great system.

At this point, Ms. Scott has a recommendation for the Commission’s consideration. As the
recordings are easily searched, she would propose that the Port move to action minutes. The
minutes will look like our current minutes, just much shorter. The action taken will be recorded
on each topic, but not the entire discussion of how the decision was made. Ms. Scott inquired if
the Commission has any questions at this point.

Commissioner Moak stated this is not relevant today, but it may be relevant in the future, there
aren’t presentations or visuals. Commissioner Moak stated, imagine there were, in previous
meetings, how does that either integrate with this particular software and audio or will it integrate
into the action minutes that are prepared.

Ms. Scott stated the power point presentation exhibits can be used as exhibits in the action minutes,
they will not be part of the recorded meeting; however, they would still be a part of our minutes.

Commissioner Moak was concerned, as Mr. Burdick was, when he voiced concern about going to
action minutes, but after the demonstration that we had last week on how relatively easy it is to get
to individual topics and he noticed in the “Progress Edition” of the Tri-City Herald that Franklin
County has the software for their meetings and he thought the Port should be at least as good as
Franklin County. Commissioner Moak is willing to try action minutes and see how that works,
and he can see where that would take less time by staff. While Commissioner Moak had an initial
trepidation about that, he does see with an indexed audio, that he thinks it is worth trying.

Page 6 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Commissioner Novakovich thanked Ms. Scott and commended everyone that worked on this and
he thinks it’s going to be a time saving measure and he agrees with Commissioner Moak that it is
probably going to offer a lot more transparency, once people are used to it. Commissioner
Novakovich thinks we need to approve this by some means and since it is not on the Agenda right
now for approval, he suggested that a Resolution be prepared that covers all of this, including
action minutes, the use of the software, and anything else and it be put on the Consent Agenda for
the next meeting.

Commissioner Barnes was impressed with the demonstration that Ms. Scott shared, that showed
the link of the audio to the Agenda. Commissioner Barnes is receptive to moving towards action
minutes, but his preference would be, to make this change one step at a time. Commissioner Barnes
would like to use the minutes that we have in place now, continuing with that process and would
favor having 2-4 meetings take place with the new audio related to the Agenda. He would like to
see how that works and how that plays out. Commissioner Barnes would especially like to see
how it works and plays out once we are back to meeting in person. When we are remote like this,
Commissioner Barnes thinks we are a little hamstrung in how we conduct our meetings, so his
preference would be to, he is open and looking favorable towards action minutes, but he would
like to see this step, one step change, which would be a move to audio, linked to the Agenda and
see how that goes for 3-4 meetings. Commissioner Barnes would especially like to see it until
after we are back meeting in person. Commissioner Barnes is receptive to it, but he would like to
be able to get back to meeting in person before he would support a Resolution that would formalize
the change.

Commissioner Moak stated while we are in this sort of quarantine time, maybe that would be fine
that we continue on with the minutes, but he thinks once we are able to get back in session, he
really thinks that we need to be trying out the action minutes and making sure that we are moving
in the right direction. Commissioner Moak is willing, given the fact, that this is a bit of a rough
meeting in terms of the audio, he is not sure what it is going to be like, but he is willing to do that
as long as we remote in, but move back to action minutes once we are back to Clover Island.

Commissioner Barnes stated another element of this audio recording that comes to mind, he thinks
when this came up, we discussed having the audio of some of our past meetings also posted to the
website. Everything that Commissioner Barnes has heard so far is speaking to today’s meeting or
maybe even last meeting, as that being the starting point for the audio posted on line.
Commissioner Barnes asked if staff has looked into what it would take to post the audio from past
meetings to our website and what would it entail.

Ms. Scott has looked into how long our meetings have been and for this year, there are about 17
hours worth of meetings that we would need to listen and index; last year is significantly more.

Commissioner Barnes stated, when you say listen to and index, if someone is trying to index an
audio recording using this software to the Agenda, does one have to listen to each and every minute
of recorded time, or does one have the ability to fast forward to an estimate where they thought an
endpoint might be for one of the elements on the Agenda and pinpoint that. And keep repeating

Page 7 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

that process, or is it necessary to listen to each and every minute of every meeting that was
recorded, in order to accomplish this.

Ms. Scott stated yes, it would be necessary for staff to listen to every minute of each recording to
index the meeting to the Agenda.

Commissioner Barnes is interested in trying to find a way to get some of our past meetings
available to the public on our website and asked staff for recommendations. He is very interested
in getting recordings of past meetings on our website, available for the public to access.

Ms. Scott asked how far back Commissioner Barnes would like to go.

Commissioner Barnes stated when we talked about this before, it was going back to the start of
2019. That is what he recalls.

Ms. Scott thinks the amount of time in 2019 is very significant, but we could perhaps work with a
consultant, perhaps PS Media or another consultant and have them index the meetings for us.

Commissioner Barnes asked if it would be possible to have the audio recordings of these meetings
on our website without having them linked to the Agenda items, just having the raw audio available
and accessible to the public on our website.

Ms. Scott stated yes, we could do that, but it would still need to be done basically minute by minute.
Ms. Scott likened it to having a double cassette player and recording a song off the radio and then
in order to get the recording to the second cassette, you would have to play it on one tape and
record on the other. Ms. Scott stated staff would have to play the audio in the meeting room, while
the new software would listen to it. Granted a staff person would not need to monitor the entire
meeting that way.

Commissioner Novakovich stated what Commissioner Barnes is proposing is probably not a bad
idea; however, we have limited staff and limited resources, and he is not sure if this is the highest
and best use of their time or expense if we were to outsource this to say, PS Media.
Commissioner Moak inquired if someone calls into office and wants to hear any given Commission
Meeting from last year, how are they able to get that? Are they able to get a recording of prior
Meetings?

Ms. Scott stated yes, the public is able to request a copy of a meeting and she would copy the
meeting audio on to a CD and give that to them to listen to.

Commissioner Moak inquired how much time would that take.

Ms. Scott stated not long at all, but she does not know how she can get that recording onto our
website.

Page 8 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Commissioner Moak stated unless people are requesting recordings of our previous meetings, he
guesses that not a lot of people have asked for that in past and he is more interested in where we
go from here, rather than what we did last year.

Commissioner Barnes stated was there was a Commission request that this be added as an Agenda
item for a future meeting.

Commissioner Novakovich stated perhaps if the Commission were going to approve action
minutes and the use of this software that we should probably take formal action to approve by a
Resolution; however, he understands that there wasn’t any support for that at this time.

D. Communications with Public

Ms. Bader Inglima stated staff continues to work to communicate with the public, not only with
the Port’s activities and actions as we work on projects or any actions related to our actions related
to the pandemic. At the last Commission Meeting, the Tri-Cities Area Journal of Business ran a
story which included the Port of Kennewick’s plans for rent deferral. Several other media outlets
picked up that story and then ran that same story and we posted links to those stories on our website.
The Port received some positive press in the Tri-City Herald “Progress Edition,” detailing our
partnership efforts in supporting City of Richland, City of West Richland, and our partnership
activities in transforming Clover Island, Columbia Drive, and Vista Field. Additionally, 97Rock
Online highlighted our progress at Vista Field. In spite of the pandemic, we are still receiving
some positive press and media coverage. Ms. Hanchette has also been communicating the
information about rent deferral with our tenants, and sharing with them about options for state,
local, or federal programs which may also benefit them. Ms. Bader Inglima has been discussing
with Mr. Arntzen and several of our tenants the opportunity to prepare advertising and some
cooperative activities, once we get through this phase of the pandemic and start to reopen. Some
activities, such as marketing and public relations that can foster some vibrancy, following the
“return to our new normal.”

Ms. Hanchette and Ms. Yates have also been working to communicate with users of our marina
and the boat launch—including information about the launch remaining open for now. Staff is
also posting signs at the launch and dock gates, and on our website about best practices for safe
boating during the pandemic. Ms. Hanchette has also has been busy communicating about actions
we have taken during the pandemic with other port districts.

Ms. Hanchette has had the opportunity to speak with one of the Commissioners via email from the
Port of Edmonds. They were curious as to how we were handling our marina operations which is
different from theirs in a number of ways. We were able to share how we are handling the boat
launch, restrooms, and the fuel docks, which are self-serve. And how we are working as remotely
as possible through email and phone calls with anyone who is interested in getting a marina slip.
It was a good exchange of emails with another Port. Also, Ms. Hanchette had the opportunity, and
thanked Commissioner Barnes for sharing the WPPA Marina webinar, which she was able to listen
to today. Ms. Hanchette stated Washington State Fish and Wildlife was the guest speaker and they
talked about reopening the state boat launches and some of the challenges and reasons why they
had to close. Ms. Hanchette stated they went through the processes and discussed how fishing

Page 9 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

licenses would become available on-line. The ports of Olympia, llwaco and Chinook all reported
as well on their marina activities. Ms. Hanchette stated there are a lot of similarities between what
they are doing and what we are doing and what other marinas are doing, some reinforcements. Ms.
Hanchette jotted down a few ideas of new things we might want to be mindful of in the future.
Ms. Hanchette stated staff continues communicating with the public and our marina tenants and
the Northwest Marine Association shared a flyer from the Marine Retailers Association of America
that highlighted safe boating guidelines. The flyer touched on everything from getting ready to go
boating, wearing gloves when you touch dock carts and fuel pumps, to launching your vessel and
returning to the docks. There were some really good tips for the public and it included information
on dealing with the Covid crisis and helpful tips post Covid as well. Ms. Yates, our marina
manager, has incorporated the information into our tenant newsletter that we send out and posted
it to the Port website, the marina gates, and the boat launch information board at Clover Island.
Ms. Hanchette stated staff continues to reach out to the marina tenants and to the public as well.

E. Director Reports
Mr. Peterson thanked the Commission for the list of stakeholders to add for Makers Kennewick
Waterfront Master Plan outreach and asked the Commission to please read the Vista Field Memo
and to be prepared to answer those questions related to Vista Field.

Ms. Hanchette stated regarding Real Estate, at the last Commission Meeting, the Commission
approved a three-month rent deferral for any of our hospitality tenants that felt the need to defer
three months of rent towards the end of the year. Ms. Hanchette worked with Ice Harbor Brewing
on doing a rent deferral for April, May, and June; and Mike Hall was very appreciative of the
opportunity to do that. He is looking forward to getting his business open also. Ms. Hanchette
reported that Cedars, through their social media posting, looks like they are opening this week for
take-out, so we are happy for them that they are able to re-open their business on a limited basis.

Ms. Hanchette has had email and phone conversations with Victor Palencia, who indicated he is
not so much concerned about the impact of today, but is more concerned about his business coming
into the fall and winter which is his off season. Leading from spring and summer into the off
season, during the spring and summer, they really rely on tourism and events to keep his tasting
room going through the winter months. Ms. Hanchette stated Mr. Palencia may come back to the
Commission later in the year to talk about how business is doing and if there are any impacts he
may be feeling at that time. Also, Cave B is somewhat similar and they have been able to work
through some of their financing options and they seem to be okay for right now. It is that unknown
that they are worried about and how the summer goes will depend on how they re-evaluate in the
fall as well. There are a lot of uncertainties and they both very much appreciated the option that
the Commission has given them and they are not looking to exercise it right now, but they may
come back later in the year for another discussion. Ms. Hanchette inquired if the Commission had
any questions.

Commissioner Moak had a meeting last night with the Downtown Kennewick Partnership and
Stephanie with the Partnership was wanting to know about what the Port might be doing related to
improvement of business or whatever and he heard Ms. Bader Inglima talk about marketing or
whatever. Commissioner Moak stated staff may want to talk to Stephanie at the Downtown

Page 10 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Association as there may be some things we can do with them directly or they might be able to
assist the Port in some ways too. Also, do we know if any of these businesses have applied for
grants or any of these PPE loans that have been in the news?

Ms. Hanchette stated we are happy to reach out to Stephanie and she will work with Ms. Bader
Inglima and see if we can do some joint efforts to get some synergy and momentum back when we
are all able to do joint efforts and events. Ms. Hanchette does know of one of our hospitality
businesses applied for the PPE and did receive it. Ms. Hanchette has not asked that question of
the others; however, if they volunteered it, then we had a good conversation, but she did not ask
point blank if they did and believed it was a little bit personal.

Commissioner Moak stated that Ms. Hanchette did learn one in fact did apply and receive it, and
that’s good.

Ms. Hanchette stated for operations, despite our best efforts, with running staggered shifts for our
maintenance team covering seven days a week and also utilizing night patrol of our facilities, we
were still burglarized at the Port maintenance shop a couple of weeks ago. Ms. Hanchette reported
that the thieves took equipment and tools out of the shop. It is unfortunate and we reported the
incident to Kennewick Police Department and if any items that have serial numbers turn up be
returned. We have taken some reactive measures, in that we have installed surveillance cameras
and added more powerful flood lights to light the area around the maintenance shop, which is
located on east 3" in Kennewick, next to the Oak Street Industrial Park Development.

Commissioner Barnes stated that is always frustrating to hear about theft and burglary at this time.
He knows it is becoming more prevalent.

Mr. Arntzen acknowledged that there is plenty of work that continues at the Port of Kennewick
and although our meetings are shorter, there are probably a lot of things we could report on, but
we haven’t, but there is tons of work that is continuing on. Mr. Arntzen is sure the Commission is
aware, but he would like to reiterate for the public, while many of us are working primarily from
home and practicing the social distancing, a lot of our work continues and he is very impressed
with how much work is getting done under the trying circumstances.

Mr. Arntzen has talked to staff about the fact that it is going to be time to start thinking about our
two-year budget and workplan and asked the Commission to start thinking about that as well.
Although it is early in the in the process, Mr. Arntzen would like to get some notes down by July
or August. Mr. Arntzen wanted to let the Commission know staff had our first discussion at the
staff meeting yesterday, so we will be moving forward with getting ideas together for the large-
scale project, which is our two-year budget and workplan. As part of that, we are going to talk
about any of the Corona Virus impacts and a lot of that might be financial impacts. Mr. Arntzen
has been working with Mr. Kooiker on that, and that will be a portion of the budget as well, so we
can give you a narrative of what we think the impacts have been or what they might be. Then we
can probably quantify that with some numbers.

Page 11 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Mr. Arntzen has been working with City of Kennewick City Manager, Marie Mosley on a
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Port and City, related to Fire Station #3,
which is the Vista Field Fire Station that the City is building on the northernly plank of Vista Field.
There is a joint road and some utility easements that need to be obtained by the City from the Port.
We are working very cooperatively on the MOU and Mr. Arntzen will most likely share that with
the Commission at the next meeting. The terms of the MOU state that the Port would assist the
City in building an access road because that access road would be important for potentially phase
2 or phase 3 of Visa Field. The Port will help them and proposes that the Port provide the City
with easements across the Vista Field property to install sewer lines and other utilities. This is a
continuation of the great partnership between the Port and the City and again, Mr. Arntzen would
like to reduce it to writing, in draft format, and bring it to the Commission most likely at the next
meeting and make sure that the Commission is comfortable with the direction that we would be
moving in.

Additionally, Mr. Arntzen stated we have been hearing on TV that some states are reopening or
considering reopening and he knows that that question will probably be posed to the Port
Commission by the public sooner or later. Mr. Arntzen will start to give that some thought and he
would like to access as much information, valuable information, rather than speculation. Mr.
Arntzen has already spent a few hours today about what our advice is nationally and statewide and
he will share that information with the Commission at a later date. Mr. Arntzen stated his
philosophy at this point, one, he does not think it behooves the Port of Kennewick to be one of the
first entities to reopen. Mr. Arntzen personally feels that the Port has made a huge commitment to
be a leader on taking actions to minimize the spread of the virus, and he believes the community
has appreciated that. Philosophically, Mr. Arntzen is not wanting to be one of the first to reopen
and thinks it needs to be based on science and sound data and we need to make a commitment to
the Port team, Commissioners, staff and the members of the public that we serve. Mr. Arntzen
would hope that the Commission could consider this and give him their thoughts on that as well,
as we progress. Mr. Arntzen will have some thoughts that he will share from time to time on
reopening, but reiterated that his personal philosophy, and he hopes this is sound reasoning, that
we need to be very cautious and make sure we don’t make mistakes and try to reopen to soon.

Mr. Arntzen stated staff has tried to keep our Commission Agendas brief and he thinks there has
been a bit of scope creep, as they call it, there has been quite a bit of information on the Agendas.
Mr. Arntzen wanted to make sure that he is sharing the appropriate level of information with the
Commission and on a couple of occasions, he has sent out emails to Commissioners talking about
some of the things we have been doing. Mr. Arntzen wanted to make sure he is striking the balance
between providing enough information yet trying to keep the meetings as brief as possible. Mr.
Arntzen has covered a lot of territory and asked if the Commission had any questions or comments.

Commissioner Novakovich thinks Mr. Arntzen is sharing information that is appropriate and
timely and he is doing a good job at keeping us informed. Secondly, as far as reopening,
Commissioner Novakovich totally agrees that he does not think we should be a leader of reopening.
We could be critical of that and may run into problems and Commissioner Novakovich thinks we
need to take a cautious approach to that and frankly, he trusts Mr. Arntzen’s judgement on that
one.

Page 12 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

Commissioner Moak agrees with Commissioner Novakovich’s comments there and thinks Mr.
Arntzen is on the right track, very much. With regards to Fire Station #3, Commissioner Moak
saw in the Legal Section that the City is advertising an RFP for that. Is there a time frame that the
City is marching towards in terms of completion for Fire Station #3 and how does that dovetail or
doesn’t dovetail with our construction or potential sale of property or anything at Vista Field?

Mr. Arntzen will defer that to Mr. Peterson to answer.

Mr. Peterson stated the City is out to bid Fire Station #3 and believes they will open bids on May
15 or 16, 2020 and will take to the City Council right after the bid opening. Mr. Peterson estimates
a 15-18-month construction time frame for that project. The roadway involved would be the
former driveway or portion thereof from the FBO building that is identified as a future road in later
phases of Vista Field. It will not impact sales or activity at Vista Field, but it will help longer term,
to establish a second entrance that someday will be connected, as later phases are completed, at
Vista Field. The City is a little bit behind, in terms of getting an agreement, to share a portion of
the cost on the roadway for a project they are to bid on.

Commissioner Moak confirmed that staff thinks things will dovetail fine with our project.

Mr. Peterson stated yes, the requirement that the City has, would be to build half the roadway and
rather than build 185 feet of half a road at some point in the future rather than build the other half
when the development necessitates, it seems logical and reasonable, and there is cost benefit to
build the entire segment of roadway, 185 feet on both sides of the roadway, at this time.

Commissioner Barnes stated as far as the information Mr. Arntzen is sharing at this point, he is
happy and knows that Mr. Arntzen is a phone call or email away. Commissioner Barnes hopes
that Mr. Arntzen understands that he is the same, and anything that comes up or anything that
merits discussion or communication, he is a phone call or email away. Commissioner Barnes
appreciates the work of staff under these trying times.

F. Commissioner Meetings (formal and informal meetings with groups or individuals)
Commissioners reported on their respective committee meetings.

G. Non-Scheduled Items

Ms. Scott thanked the Commission for their patience with the audio and hopes we can continue to
make improvements with that.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Cal Coie, 705 South Oklahoma Street, Kennewick. Mr. Coie confirmed that the Clover Island Yacht Club
is on the list of stakeholders for the Kennewick Waterfront Master Plan.

Commissioner Barnes confirmed that the Clover Island Yacht Club was on the primary stakeholder list.

Ms. Scott unmuted the anonymous callers, but no further comments were made.

Page 13 of 14



PORT OF KENNEWICK APRIL 28, 2020 MINUTES

REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING
DRAFT

No further comments were made.

COMMISSION COMMENTS

Commissioner Barnes thanked staff for working through the issues on our virtual meetings and stated that
these are very challenging times and he would like to commend staff for all of the work and all of the
effort that it takes to pull together a meeting like this under these very challenging times. Also,
Commissioner Barnes would like to commend staff for all the work that continues to go on as Mr. Arntzen
mentioned earlier. There is a lot of work that continues at the Port of Kennewick and he hopes the public
sees that and understands that and Commissioner Barnes knows that the Commission is very appreciative
of all of that work and thanked staff very much.

No further comments were made.

ADJOURNMENT
With no further business to bring before the Board; the meeting was adjourned 3:23 p.m.

APPROVED: PORT of KENNEWICK
BOARD of COMMISSIONERS

Don Barnes, President

Skip Novakovich, Vice President

Thomas Moak, Secretary

Page 14 of 14



Memorandum

Date: 08 May 2020

To: Port of Kennewick — Commissioners & Staff

From: Adam J. Fyall, Benton County

Re: Benton County / State Auditor Discussion of “Point 09”

Commissioners,

I am scheduled to join Mr. Arntzen for a discussion of this emerging topic at your May 12
meeting. Here is some very brief background so that you have a little bit of preparation in
advance.

At issue is a dialogue the County has been having with staff in the Washington State Auditor’s
Office on the nature of how Benton County handles and disburses that economic development
sales & use tax rebate commonly referred to as the “Point 09” money, or as we refer to it at
Benton County, the “Rural County Capital Fund”. | will explain in the meeting how this
conversation isn’t really focused and has gone in a couple of different directions. At its essence
though, is the assertion by SAO staff that Benton County — and presumably other counties —
have been perhaps illegally disbursing these monies to port districts. Benton County patently
disagrees with this suggestion. During the meeting, | will explain how this started, how it has
progressed, and where | think it is right now.

A few other notes...

Benton County generally references the RCCF history in three phases:
e Phase 1 (2000-2002) — Community Investment
e Phase 2 (2002-2017) — Debt Service to Jail Bonds
e Phase 3 (2017-2020) — Community Investment

During the community investment phases, the County has directed millions of dollars into
economic development projects sponsored by all five cities and both port districts in the County.
Not in the early years, and not until now in the later years, has anyone from the SAO called our
well-defined, efficient, and transparent disbursement practices into question.

According to both your staff and the Washington Public Ports Association, many counties
throughout the state have operated their respective Point 09 programs similarly and without
issue. Nonetheless, when this dialogue began with the SAO, | put the ports of Benton,
Kennewick, and Pasco on notice that something was going on in Olympia.

So far, | have asked stakeholders to not apply a bunch of heat on the SAO and to let this play
out. | do not think it has gone far up the chain at SAO. In our last discussion with SAO staff, |
tried to convey to them that this item could start to get away from them very quickly and that
they might not like or have anticipated the disruption that would cause in their office. | am
waiting to see if they caught the drift.

I look forward to sharing more with you at your meeting.

#HH



DocuSign Envelope ID: 0847E9C3-DFF5-4AEB-9E9F-4FB04A176BD5

&
2
o
4

Extablishad
9, 7975

TO:

=

KENNEWICK)\®

AGENDA REPORT

Port Commission

DS
FROM: Nick Kooiker, CF()l My

MEETING DATE: May 12,2020

AGENDA ITEM:  Surplus Property

I1.

I11.

IVv.

REFERENCE(S): Resolution 2020-09
Exhibit A - List of Surplus Assets

FISCAL IMPACT: Approximately $20,000

DISCUSSION: The Port maintenance shop was burglarized on April 15%, 2020. The
Port’s maintenance team has gone through and itemized a list of items believed to be stolen.
It is required that the Port formally executes a resolution, removing these items from our
capital asset listing. RCW 53.08.090 provides that the Port Commissioners may authorize
the Port Chief Executive Officer to sell and convey property.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution 2020-09 to surplus assets.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COMMISSION:
Motion: | move approval of Resolution 2020-09, authorizing the
Port’s CEO to surplus Port property as attached in ““Exhibit A” and
further ratifies and approves all action by port officers and
employees in furtherance hereof.




DocuSign Envelope ID: 0847E9C3-DFF5-4AEB-9E9F-4FB04A176BD5

PORT OF KENNEWICK
RESOLUTION 2020-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE
PORT OF KENNEWICK AUTHORIZING THE PORT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
TO SELL AND CONVEY SURPLUS PROPERTY

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of the Port of Kennewick met this 12th day of May, 2020, a
quorum of the Commissioners being present; and

WHEREAS, from time to time it is necessary to surplus items no longer needed for Port District
purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Port maintenance shop was burglarized on 4/15/20, and it’s necessary to formally
surplus items deemed as stolen; and

WHEREAS, RCW 53.08.090 provides that the Port Commissioners may authorize the Port Chief
Executive Officer to sell and convey property; and

WHEREAS, prior to each such disposition of Port property, the Port Chief Executive Officer is directed
to present to the Commission an itemized list of the property and to make written certification that the listed
property is no longer needed for Port District purposes.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Port of Kennewick Commissioners authorize the Chief
Executive Officer to surplus Port property no longer needed for Port purposes as attached in “Exhibit A”.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all action by port officers and employees in furtherance hereof is
ratified and approved; and further, the port Chief Executive Officer is authorized to take all action necessary
in furtherance hereof.

ADOPTED by the Board of Commissioners of Port of Kennewick this 12th day of May 2020.

PORT OF KENNEWICK
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

By:

DON BARNES, President
By:

SKIP NOVAKOVICH, Vice President
By:

THOMAS MOAK, Secretary




DocuSign Envelope ID: 0847E9C3-DFF5-4AEB-9E9F-4FB04A176BD5

RESOLUTION 2020-09
“Exhibit A”
Attractive Assets
Asset | Disposition Property Description Date In Service Cost
139 | Stolen JD Tek 3500 Generator N/A N/A
141 | Stolen Wire Feed Welder N/A N/A
151 | Stolen Equipment Hydraulic Lift Cart 3/21/2013 $ 173.27
BOSCH Rotary Hammer Dirill
166 | Stolen 12/20/2012 $ 280.50
167 | Stolen Shop Vac (Orange) N/A N/A
169 | Stolen Shop Vac (Orange) N/A N/A
183 | Stolen Hitachi Chop Saw - 15 amp 2/24/2015 $ 486.27
185 | Stolen Power Generator 2/24/2015 $ 778.87
192 | Stolen Dewalt Reciprocating Saw - Sawzall 2/24/2015 $ 107.51
196 | Stolen Toro Snow Blower 1/2/2017 $ 537.56
198 | Stolen Leaf Vacuum/Blower 11/1/2016 $ 199.81
207 | Stolen Windshield mount TomTom 5/12/2016 $ 68.39
Capital Assets
Asset | Disposition Property Description Date In Service Cost
1250 | Stolen Hotsy Pressure Washer 4/1/2017 $7,952.92
729 | Stolen Trailer/hitch/license/coupler 7/31/2003 $2,337.42
DocuSigned by: 5/1/2020
CFO/Auditor Certification: Mok l;oow‘w
e AR K boiker Date




From: Tana Bader-Inglima

To: Bridgette Scott

Subject: FW: U.S. Department of Commerce Announces Availability of $1.5 Billion in CARES Act Funds to Aid Communities
Impacted by the Coronavirus Pandemic

Date: Friday, May 08, 2020 2:55:03 PM

Attachments: image001.png

2020.5.7 FY20 PWEAA NOFO including NCC and CARES.PDF

Tana Bader Inglima, Deputy CEO
Port of Kennewick

350 Clover Island Drive, Suite 200
Kennewick, WA 99336
509-586-8140 direct
509-586-1186 office
509-586-7678 fax

509-948-3514 cell

Tana@PortOfKennewick.org

From: Stephanie Seamans [mailto:SSeamans@bfcog.us]

Sent: Thursday, May 7, 2020 11:48 AM

Subject: FW: U.S. Department of Commerce Announces Availability of $1.5 Billion in CARES Act
Funds to Aid Communities Impacted by the Coronavirus Pandemic

Good morning, Economic Development and Regional Partners:

The U.S. Department of Commerce Economic Development Administration has issued their notice of
funding opportunity for CARES Act Funding this morning. The EDA expects to fund approximately
$266 million from the Seattle Northwest Regional Office with as little as 0-20% community match
possible for this opportunity. Applications will be accepted on a rolling basis.

If you are planning to apply, please let BFCG know so we will be aware of your project and can help
to support your application with the EDA staff and by confirming consistency with the
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy.

Thank you,
Stephanie

Stephanie Seamans, CPA
Executive Director

Community and Economic Development Manager
Benton-Franklin Council of Governments


mailto:tana@portofkennewick.org
mailto:bscott@portofkennewick.org
mailto:Tana@PortOfKennewick.org





NOTICE OF FUNDING OPPORTUNITY
Public Works and Economic Adjustment Assistance Programs

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Federal Agency Name: Economic Development Administration (EDA or the Agency),
U.S. Department of Commerce (DOC).

Federal Funding Opportunity Title: FY 2020 Public Works and Economic Adjustment
Assistance Notice of Funding Opportunity (FY20 PWEAA NOFO).

Announcement Type and Date: FY20 PWEAA NOFO publishing EDA’s application
submission requirements and review procedures for applications received under EDA’s
(1) Public Works and Economic Development Facilities (Public Works) and (ii) Economic

Adjustment Assistance (EAA) programs, authorized under the Public Works and Economic
Development Act of 1965, as amended (42 U.S.C. § 3121 et seq.). Effective date: 5/7/2020

Funding Opportunity Number: PWEAA2020

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA) Numbers: 11.300, Investments for
Public Works and Economic Development Facilities and 11.307, Economic Adjustment
Assistance.

Dates: There are no submission deadlines. Applications will be accepted on an ongoing
basis until the publication of a new PWEAA NOFO, cancellation of this PWEAA NOFO, or
all available funds have been expended. EDA intends to review applications within 60 days
of receipt. Please see Section E of this NOFO for complete information on EDA’s review
process.

Funding Opportunity Description: EDA provides strategic investments on a competitive
merit basis to support economic development, foster job creation, and attract private
investment in economically distressed areas of the United States. Under this NOFO, EDA
solicits applications from applicants in order to provide investments that support
construction, non-construction, planning, technical assistance, and revolving loan fund
projects under EDA’s Public Works program and EAA program (which includes Assistance
to Coal Communities). Grants and cooperative agreements made under these programs are
designed to leverage existing regional assets and support the implementation of economic
development strategies that advance new ideas and creative approaches to advance
economic prosperity in distressed communities, including those negatively impacted by
changes to the coal economy.

Eligible applicants: EDA is not authorized to provide grants or cooperative agreements
under its Public Works or EAA programs to individuals or for-profit entities. Requests from
such entities will not be considered for funding. Pursuant to Section 3(4) of PWEDA (42
U.S.C. § 3122(4)(a)) and 13 C.F.R. § 300.3 (Eligible Recipient), eligible applicants for EDA
financial assistance under the Public Works and EAA programs include a(n): (i) District
Organization of an EDA-designated Economic Development District; (ii) Indian Tribe or a
consortium of Indian Tribes; (iii) State, county, city, or other political subdivision of a State,
including a special purpose unit of a State or local government engaged in economic or

Page 1 of 45





infrastructure development activities, or a consortium of political subdivisions; (iv)
institution of higher education or a consortium of institutions of higher education; or (v)
public or private non-profit organization or association acting in cooperation with officials
of a political subdivision of a State.

Page 2 of 45





FULL ANNOUNCEMENT TEXT

FY 2020 Public Works and Economic Adjustment Assistance Programs

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ...cuuiininniniuinsensinsunssenssesssnssesssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssasssss 1
FULL ANNOUNCEMENT TEXT ..uccoviivisinsenssensanssensesssnssesssnsssssssssssssssssasssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 3
A. Program DesCriPtion ......ccceeiciiccisrenisnnenssencsssnncssssncssssecsssssessssesssssessssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 5
Lo OVETVIEW ..ottt ettt et sttt et b et et s bt et e it e s bt et e eatenbeeneesaeens 5
2. EDA Investment PriOTities .......ccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiesieeeeeeee e 5
3. EDA Program INformation............ccoeoiiriiiiiiiiiiiieeieeee ettt 5
4. Statutory Authorities for EDA’S Programs ...........cccocceeviienieiiiieniecieeieeeeee e 9
B. Federal Award INformation .........eiieiineicneeineinsensennsnensensssessensssesssesssscsssessssesssens 10
1. What Funding Is Available Under This Announcement? ...........c.ccccervvereenernenneenn 10
2. What Type of Funding Instrument Will Be Used to Make Awards and How Long
Will a Project’s Period of Performance Be? ..........cocvvveiiiieiiiiiiiieceeeeeeeeeee 11
C. Eligibility INFOrmMation .......coueeiieiieniseenienssnensenssnensensnssssessnsssaessssesssssssssssssssssssssssssase 11
1. ElgIble APPICANLS ....ooviiiiieiiieiieciie ettt ettt eiae b e seaeetaeseseenseeeene 11
2. Cost Sharing or MatChing...........cceeeiiiiiiiieiiii et 12
3. Economic DiStress CIIteTIa.......ccuieeruiieeiiieeeitieeetieeeieeeeteeesireeeeseeeesaeeeaseesseeesseeesnns 13
D. Application Submission INfOrmation...........ccceeeesverecssenccssncsssencsssensssssnssssssssssssssssscses 18
1. Address to Request an APpliCation ..........cccvieeiiiieriiieeniieeeie e 18
2. Content and Form of the Application..........ccccoeeviiriininiiniiniccnieeceeeee e 19
3. Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM) ..................... 26
4. Submission Dates and TImes ..........ccceriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee e 26
5. Intergovernmental REVIEW .........cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiee e 27
6. Funding ReEStrICHIONS. ......ccueiriiiiieiiiieiieeiie ettt ettt e eve et e esbeebeeeeveeneeas 27
7. Other Submission REQUITEMENTS ........cccveeeiiiieiiiieciie et 28
E. Application Review INfOrmation........eeieiecisiiissnnecssnccssnccssnecssssncssssncssssnessssncsssssenes 28
1. Review and Selection ProCeSS.........coeiriiriiriiiinieniieeeestete ettt 28
2. Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity System (FAPIIS) Review................... 31
F. Federal Award Administration Information ...........ecceecnseicssnicisencnssnncssnncssnnnesnnns 31
1. Federal Award NOtHICAtION......cc.eecuiiieriiiiiiieiieeeeeeee e 31
2. Administrative and National Policy Requirements.............ccccoeevvveeiiieniieeniieeeieeene 32
3. REPOTTING ..ttt et ettt et e et e et ee st e e bt e eabeenbeesneeenseas 32
G. Federal Awarding Agency CONTACES ......cccceeersercssnnicssanicsssnesssssesssssesssssssssssssssssossssssssnss 33
Atlanta Regional OffiCe.......ccuiiiiiiiiiiieceeeeeee et 33

Page 3 of 45





I.

Austin Regional OffiCe.........oouiiiiiriiiiiiiiiiie e 34

Chicago Regional OffiCe ........cooiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeee e 34
Denver Regional OffiCe.......ccuiiiiiiiiiieceeceeee ettt eaae e 35
Philadelphia Regional Office .........cccooiriiniiiiiiiiiiiieccceeeee e 35
Seattle Re@ional OffICe .......ccvieiiiiiiiiiiie e 36
Other INfOrmation.........coeieeiiieinneiiniiecsseeissneisseeesseecsssseessssesssssessssssssssesssssssssssssssssees 37
1. Right to Use INformation..........cccocueriiiiiiiniiniiicntececce e 37
2. Freedom of Information Act DiSCIOSUIE ........cceevuirieniiriiiniiiiieierieieeeeeee e 37
3. Notice of Government-Wide Procurement Restriction ...........cccccoeceevieniiiinceniennen. 38
4. Past Performance and Non-Compliance with Award Provisions..........cceccceceevuennnee 38
5. Restrictions Governing Making Grants to Corporations Convicted of Federal Felony
and Federal Criminal Tax Violations, Unpaid Federal Tax Assessments, and
Delinquent Federal Tax REtUINS........ccccueeiiieiiiiiieiiieiieeieeite et 38
6. EDA’s Non-Relocation POLICY ......ccuieiiiiiiiiieiiieeiee et 39
7. Audit REQUITEMENTS......eeeiiiiiiiiieiie ettt ettt e seeeeeeas 39
8. Implementing the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)......ccoceeverienerienienenne. 39
Instructions for Application Submission via Grants.gov.........c..cceercsssercssercsssescsenns 40

Attachment 1. Certifications Regarding Federal Felony and Federal Criminal Tax
Convictions, Unpaid Federal Tax Assessments and Delinquent Federal Tax Returns ....... 43

Page 4 of 45





A. Program Description
1. Overview

This Notice of Funding Availability (NOFO) announcement sets out EDA’s application
submission and review procedures for two of its Economic Development Assistance Programs
authorized under the Public Works and Economic Development Act of 1965, as amended (42
U.S.C. § 3121 et seq.) (PWEDA): (i) Public Works and Economic Development Facilities
(Public Works) and (ii) Economic Adjustment Assistance (EAA). EDA publishes separate
NOFO announcements for other funding opportunities, including: Regional Innovation
Strategies, Planning and Local Technical Assistance, University Center, Research and National
Technical Assistance, and Disaster Recovery.

EDA'’s Public Works and EAA programs provide economically distressed communities
and regions with comprehensive and flexible resources to address a wide variety of economic
needs. Projects funded by these programs will support the DOC Strategic Plan (2018-2022) by,
among other things, advancing innovation, enhancing the manufacturing and export capacities
of regions, providing workforce development opportunities, and growing ecosystems that attract
foreign direct investment. Through these programs, EDA supports bottom-up strategies that
build on regional assets to spur economic growth and resiliency. EDA encourages its grantees
throughout the country to develop initiatives that present new ideas and creative approaches to
advance economic prosperity in distressed communities.

2. EDA Investment Priorities

All projects considered for EDA funding under this NOFO must be consistent with at
least one of EDA’s Investment Priorities. EDA’s Investment Priorities can be found at
https://www.eda.gov/about/investment-priorities.htm. EDA’s website will be updated on
January 15, April 15, June 15, or September 15 of each year if there are any revisions to these
Investment Priorities.

3. EDA Program Information

This section provides detailed information on the two programs to which this NOFO
applies. Additional information about EDA’s programs, including information about the
eligibility of specific kinds of projects, is available through EDA staff.

EDA staff provides technical assistance to prospective applicants to assist in application
development and submission. Applicants are strongly encouraged to contact the EDA
representative listed for their applicable State in Section G of this NOFO before submitting an
application to EDA to clarify technical matters involving their project, its alignment with
EDA’s mission and Investment Priorities, and all other relevant publicly available information
relating to general technical matters.

Except for a “Strategy Grant,” as described below, each project funded under Public
Works and EAA must be consistent with the region’s current Comprehensive Economic
Development Strategy (CEDS) or equivalent EDA-accepted regional economic development
strategy that meets EDA’s CEDS or strategy requirements. Applicants must clearly detail how
the project will support the economic development needs and objectives outlined in the CEDS
or equivalent EDA-accepted regional economic development strategy. Applicants should

Page 5 of 45





identify the CEDS or equivalent EDA-accepted regional economic development strategy and
provide a copy of this planning document, either by attaching the document to the application or
including the web link for the document. In addition, applicants should indicate if other Federal
funds have been secured for, or have been requested to support, any portion of the project for
which an EDA investment is proposed. Applicants should describe how the EDA investment
will complement, leverage, or otherwise align with other public and private investments to
implement the project. Where other Federal funding may be involved in the project, the
applicant should provide the Federal program name and contact information with their
application in order to facilitate interagency coordination and avoid duplication of resources.

Under this NOFO, applicants may also seek funding in the form of a “Strategy Grant” to
develop, update, or refine a CEDS that alleviates long-term economic deterioration or a sudden
and severe economic dislocation, as described in EDA’s regulations at 13 C.F.R. § 307.3.

Additional information and a summary of EDA’s CEDS and strategy requirements may
be obtained through the appropriate EDA representative listed in Section G of this NOFO.

a) Public Works!

Through the Public Works program, EDA provides catalytic investments to help
distressed communities build, design, or engineer critical infrastructure and facilities that will
help implement regional development strategies and advance bottom-up economic development
goals to promote regional prosperity. The Public Works program provides resources to meet the
construction and/or infrastructure design needs of communities to enable them to become more
economically competitive. Prior examples of investments EDA has supported through the
Public Works program include projects supporting water and sewer system improvements,
industrial parks, high-tech shipping and logistics facilities, workforce training facilities,
business incubators and accelerators, brownfield redevelopment, technology-based facilities,
wet labs, multi-tenant manufacturing facilities, science and research parks, and
telecommunications infrastructure and development facilities.

As noted above, investments made through the Public Works program must be aligned
with a current CEDS or equivalent EDA-accepted regional economic development strategy and
clearly lead to the creation or retention of long-term high-quality jobs. For example, under this
program, EDA may provide funding to a consortium of eligible recipients to support the
construction of a technology center that provides laboratory, office, and manufacturing space
that leads to the creation of advanced manufacturing jobs. As another example, EDA may
provide funding to a county government to support regional job creation in targeted cluster
industries and expand those industries’ ability to export goods.

b) Economic Adjustment Assistance (EAA)>

Through the EAA program, EDA provides investments that support a wide range of
construction and non-construction activities (including infrastructure, design and engineering,

' CFDA No. 11.300. The regulations implementing the Public Works program may be found at 13 C.F.R part 305.
2 CFDA No. 11.307. The regulations implementing the EAA program may be found at 13 C.F.R. part 307. Please
note that Section 307.3 of EDA’s regulations describe the differences between an EAA implementation grant and
an EAA Strategy Grant. See also 42 U.S.C. § 3149(b)(2) (EAA planning project is not required to be carried out in
an area with a CEDS or be consistent with an existing CEDS).

Page 6 of 45





technical assistance, economic recovery strategies, and capitalization or re-capitalization of
Revolving Loan Funds (RLF)) in regions experiencing severe economic dislocations that may
occur suddenly or over time. EDA utilizes EAA investments to provide resources that help
communities experiencing or anticipating economic dislocations to plan and implement specific
solutions to leverage their existing regional economic advantages to support economic
development and job creation. Like Public Works investments, EAA investments are designed
to help communities catalyze public-private partnerships to foster collaboration, attract
investment, create jobs, and foster economic resiliency and prosperity. For example, EDA might
provide funding to a university or community college to create and launch an economic
diversification strategy to promote and enhance the growth of emerging industries in a region
facing job losses due to declines in regionally important industries. As another example, EDA
might provide funding to a city to support the construction of a publicly-owned multi-tenant
business and industrial facility to house early-stage businesses.

Nuclear Closure Communities (NCCs)

EDA provides assistance to nuclear closure communities (NCCs) under EAA. Closures
of nuclear power plants (NPPs) throughout the United States have had a significant impact on
the economic foundations of surrounding communities through sudden job losses and a
reduction to the local tax base. To address this, EDA assists regions that have been impacted, or
can reasonably demonstrate that they will be impacted, by NPP closure(s).

To be eligible for NCC funding, a project must meet the NCC Special Need eligibility
criterion in Section C.3.b.k. NCC funds may be used to make awards for any activity eligible
for award under EAA, described immediately above in Section A.3.b, including but not limited
to early-stage strategic planning activities, public works (construction) investments, and
economic diversification initiatives.

Assistance to Coal Communities (ACC)

EDA designates a portion of its EAA funding to support communities and regions that
have been negatively impacted by changes in the coal economy.? To be eligible for ACC
funding, a project must meet the ACC Special Need eligibility criterion in Section C.3.b.j.

To support these projects, EDA prioritizes ACC implementation projects and activities
that:

0 Will produce multiple economic and workforce development outcomes, such as
promoting regional economic growth and diversification, new job creation, and re-
employment opportunities for displaced coal economy workers; and

0 Are specifically identified under local and regional economic development plans that
have been collaboratively produced by diverse local and regional stakeholders.

3 “Coal economy” is a term that reflects the complete supply chain of coal-reliant industries. This includes, but is
not limited to: coal mining, coal-fired power plants, along with related transportation, logistics, and supply chain
manufacturing. This NOFO represents the fifth consecutive fiscal year in which EDA has made grant funds
available specifically to assist communities and regions negatively impacted by economic contractions in the coal
economy. During earlier competitive funding cycles, EDA made these funds available through the POWER+
Initiative. Through this NOFO, EDA makes these funds available solely through ACC grants; although, other
Federal agencies may still have POWER grants that are open for application.

Page 7 of 45





Under this NOFO, EDA will also support ACC planning through Strategy Grants that

develop, update, or refine a CEDS or an equivalent regional economic development strategy
document.

ACC projects should respond to one or more of the following funding principles, as

appropriate:

Collaborative Partnerships: Competitive applications will successfully demonstrate
that the applicant is engaged in collaborative relationships with a variety of local and
regional stakeholders (public, private, for-profit, and non-profit) whose combined
contributions will be invested to support the development and implementation of the
proposed project.

Economic and Workforce Development Integration: Competitive applications will
clearly demonstrate how the project is designed to simultaneously address the
workforce needs of local and regional businesses and the re-employment needs of local
and regional workers who have been displaced by changes in the coal economy.

High Quality Jobs and Worker Advancement: Numerous communities, regions, and
states across the country have historically relied upon the coal industry to provide good,
reliable jobs and economic prosperity. Contractions in the coal economy and the
resulting loss of these jobs are particularly harmful to workers in the various sectors of
the coal economy. Competitive applications will include those that propose to
implement or otherwise incorporate workforce development strategies that prioritize:

0 The creation and growth potential of family-supporting jobs and careers;

0 Workforce development activities that offer workers “career pathways” upon
re-employment — the provision of additional educational and skills attainment
opportunities directly linked to employee career advancement and better paying
jobs within the targeted industry; and

0 The provision of job training courses that equip workers with
industry-recognized credentials that enhance their economic mobility and
advancement.*

Multi-Jurisdictional Project Impact: Among other factors, applications that strive to
produce economic diversification and job creation on a multi-jurisdictional basis will be
prioritized for selection and funding. “Multi-Jurisdictional” is a term that can include,
but is not limited to:

O Multiple communities within a county;
O Multiple counties within a region;

O Multiple regions within a State; and

* EDA recognizes that the quality of jobs created in emerging industries is often evolving, and such industries
typically do not yet have mature career pathways or skill standards. Applicants focused on emerging industries
where these circumstances prevail should explain how their proposed strategies will create the conditions for
increasing job quality and better defined pathways for worker advancement over the longer term (which may
extend beyond the time frame of eligible funding).

Page 8 of 45





O Multiple regions in two or more States.

ACC projects can include but are not limited to:

e Supporting the creation of new businesses and jobs in a variety of industry sectors,
including, but not limited to advanced manufacturing, agriculture, energy, information
technology (IT), health care, telecommunications, tourism and recreation, transportation,
and cultural and natural assets.

e Implementing local and regional job creation and growth and economic diversification
strategies targeted towards affected workers and businesses.

e Strengthening or developing existing or emerging industry clusters.’
e Developing business incubator programs.

e Enhancing access to and use of broadband services to support job growth through
business creation and expansion.

e The generation of economic development diversification strategies in accordance with
CEDS criteria.®

o Facilitating access to private capital investment and providing related capacity building
and technical assistance to maximize the effective utilization of capital investment for
business development and job creation.

e Facilitating and promoting market access for goods and services created and
manufactured by businesses in the impacted community/region.

Applicants are strongly encouraged to contact the appropriate Regional Office ACC
program point of contact (POC) listed in Section G of this NOFO for specific guidance
pertaining to the eligible use of program funds.

Note: EDA’s EAA program supports a wide range of technical, planning, and
public works and infrastructure projects in regions that are experiencing adverse
economic changes that may occur suddenly or over time, including communities
experiencing economic distress as the result of contractions in the local/regional coal
economy. For more information regarding the full scope of EAA along with EDA’s other
programs, as well as recent examples of awarded projects, applicants are encouraged to

visit www.eda.gov.

4. Statutory Authorities for EDA’s Programs

The statutory authorities for EDA’s Public Works and EAA programs are Sections 201
(42 U.S.C. § 3141) and 209 (42 U.S.C. § 3149) of PWEDA, respectively.

Applicant eligibility and program requirements are set forth in EDA’s regulations
(codified at 13 C.F.R. chapter III), and all applicants must address these requirements. Specific
program requirements for the Public Works program are set out at 13 C.F.R. part 305 and for

5 Industry clusters are networks of interconnected firms and supporting institutions in a common geographic region.
Clusters also are generally defined by and benefit from shared labor pools, infrastructure, and markets.
6 See 13 C.F.R. § 303.7.

Page 9 of 45





the EAA program at 13 C.F.R. part 307. For EDA’s Public Works and EAA programs, this
announcement supersedes the EDAP NOFO announcement dated July 2, 2018. EDA’s
regulations are accessible at the U.S. Government Publishing Office website at
https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/ECFR ?page=browse.” Under “Browse” select “Title 13 — Business
Credit and Assistance,” click “Go,” and follow the link to parts “300-399.”

B. Federal Award Information
1. What Funding Is Available Under This Announcement?

For FY 2020, EDA was appropriated $118.5 million for the Public Works program, $37
million for the EAA program, an additional $30 million in EAA funds for ACC, and $15
million for NCC pursuant to the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020 (P.L. 116-93) (Division
B—Commerce, Justice, Science, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2020) and its
accompanying joint explanatory statement.

The funding periods and amounts referenced in this PWEAA NOFO are subject to the
availability of funds at the time of award as well as DOC and EDA priorities at the time of
award. Neither DOC nor EDA will be held responsible for application preparation costs.
Publication of this announcement does not obligate DOC or EDA to award any specific grant or
cooperative agreement or to obligate all or any part of available funds.

The average award amounts set out below are provided only for your information and
may prove useful for planning purposes. EDA anticipates making similar awards, subject to the
availability of funding. Actual amounts awarded may be higher or lower depending on the
nature of the proposed project and the availability of funds. Applications for funding of
activities related to existing awards may compete with applications for new awards.

The average size of a Public Works investment has been approximately $1.4 million and
investments generally range from $600,000 to $3,000,000. Historically, EDA has awarded
funds for between 80 and 150 Public Works projects a year.

The average size of an EAA investment has been approximately $650,000 and
investments generally range from $150,000 to $1,000,000. Historically, EDA has awarded
funds for between 70 and 140 EAA projects a year.

In FY 2020, EDA will continue to support assistance to coal communities through the
ACC program and expects to award grants generally ranging from $500,000 to $2,000,000 for
implementation projects and from $100,000 to $350,000 for planning activities.

In FY 2020, EDA will support nuclear closure communities and expects to award grants
generally ranging from $500,000 to $2,000,000 for implementation projects and from $100,000
to $350,000 for planning activities.

DOC or EDA may cancel or withdraw this NOFO at any time.

"In the event of discrepancies between the instructions and information provided in this NOFO and EDA’s
regulations, EDA regulations will control.

Page 10 of 45





2. What Type of Funding Instrument Will Be Used to Make Awards and How
Long Will a Project’s Period of Performance Be?

Funding Instrument: Subject to the availability of funds, EDA may award grants or
cooperative agreements to eligible applicants to help support economic development project-
based activities. EDA will award a cooperative agreement on a case-by-case basis if substantial
agency involvement is required. For a cooperative agreement, the nature of EDA’s “substantial
involvement” (to be included in the terms and conditions of the award) will generally be
collaboration between EDA and the recipient on the scope of work. Other possible examples of
EDA’s “substantial involvement” pursuant to a cooperative agreement may include, but are not
limited to: (i) authority to halt immediately an activity if detailed performance specifications are
not met; (ii) stipulation that the recipient must meet or adhere to specific procedural
requirements before subsequent stages of a project may continue; (iii) involvement in the
recipient’s selection of key personnel; and (iv) operational involvement during the project to
ensure compliance with statutory requirements.

Period of Performance: The period of performance for a given project will depend on
the type of project, scope of work, and the EDA program under which the grant or cooperative
agreement for the project is awarded. For example, the period of performance for a construction
investment under EDA’s Public Works program may last for three years, while a strategy
investment under the EAA program may allow for one to three years for completion of the
scope of work, depending on its complexity or urgency. EDA will work closely with recipients
to accommodate their projected timelines within reason and allowances of regulations and grant
policies. EDA expects that all projects will proceed efficiently and expeditiously, and EDA
encourages applicants to clearly document how quickly they will be able to start and complete
the proposed project scope of work. All construction projects are expected to be completed
within five years from the date of award.

C. Eligibility Information
1. Eligible Applicants
Eligible applicants for investment assistance under this PWEAA NOFO include a(n):

a. District Organization;

b. Indian Tribe or a consortium of Indian Tribes;

c. State, county, city, or other political subdivision of a State, including a special
purpose unit of a State or local government engaged in economic or
infrastructure development activities, or a consortium of political subdivisions;

d. Institution of higher education or a consortium of institutions of higher
education; or

e. Public or private non-profit organization or association acting in cooperation
with officials of a political subdivision of a State.®

Under its Public Works and EAA programs, EDA is not authorized to provide grants or
cooperative agreements to individuals or to for-profit entities, and such requests will not be
considered for funding.

8 See Section 3 of PWEDA (42 U.S.C. § 3122) and 13 C.F.R. § 300.3.
Page 11 of 45





2. Cost Sharing or Matching

Cost sharing is an essential element of any EDA project, and the availability and
committed nature of matching funds is a competitiveness factor in evaluating applications
against each other. Generally, the amount of an EDA award may not exceed 50 percent of the
total cost of the project. Projects may receive an additional amount that may not exceed up to 30
percent of the total project cost, based on the relative needs of the region’® in which the project
will be located, as determined by EDA.

In general, EDA’s maximum investment rate (percent of the total project cost) is
determined by the average per capita income or unemployment rate of the region in which the
project is located, as outlined in Table 1 below:!°

TABLE 1
Maximum allowable
investment rates
Projects located in regions in which: (percentage of total project
cost)

(A) The 24-month unemployment rate is at least 225% of the R0
national average; or
(B) The per capita income is not more than 50% of the 20
national average.
(C) The 24-month unemployment rate is at least 200% of the 70
national average; or
(D) The per capita income is not more than 60% of the 70
national average.
(E) The 24-month unemployment rate is at least 175% of the 60
national average; or
(F) The per capita income is not more than 65% of the 60
national average.
(G) The 24-month unemployment rate is at least

: . 50
1 percentage point greater than the national average; or
(H) The per capita income is not more than 80% of the 50

national average.

For projects subject to a Special Need, as outlined in Section C.3 below, EDA will
determine the maximum allowable investment rate, not to exceed 80 percent of the total project
cost, based on the actual or threatened overall economic situation of the region in which the
project is located.

In addition, the Assistant Secretary for Economic Development has discretion to
establish a maximum EDA investment rate of up to 100 percent of the total project cost for

% See 13 C.F.R. § 300.3 for definition of “region.”
10'See Section 204(a) of PWEDA (42 U.S.C. § 3144) and 13 C.F.R. § 301.4(b)(1).

Page 12 of 45





projects: (i) of a State (or political subdivision of a State) that the Assistant Secretary for
Economic Development determines has exhausted its effective taxing and borrowing capacity
or (i1) of a non-profit organization that the Assistant Secretary for Economic Development
determines has exhausted its effective borrowing capacity.!! Additionally, EDA’s regulations
provide discretion to establish a maximum EDA investment rate of up to 100 percent for
projects of Indian Tribes.'?

Potential applicants should contact the EDA representative listed for their State in
Section G of this PWEAA NOFO to obtain additional information regarding these EDA
investment rate determinations.

The applicant must document that the matching share will: (i) be committed to the
project for the period of performance, (ii) be available as needed, and (iii) not be conditioned or
encumbered in any way that may preclude its use consistent with the requirements of EDA
investment assistance.! In order to meet these requirements, applicants should submit for each
source of the matching share a commitment letter or equivalent document signed by an
authorized representative of the organization providing the matching funds.

Additional documentation may be requested by EDA in order to substantiate the
availability of the matching funds. For example, if bonds are contemplated as match, counsel
opinion of the applicant’s bonding authority and eligibility of the bonds for use as match, along
with full disclosure of the type of bonds and the schedule of the applicant’s intended bond issue,
are required. Please contact the appropriate EDA representative listed in Section G of this
PWEAA NOFO with questions regarding EDA’s matching share requirements.

Documented in-kind contributions may provide the required non-Federal Share of the
total project cost, but they must be eligible project costs and meet applicable Federal cost
principles and uniform administrative requirements. Examples of in-kind contributions can
include space, equipment, services, or forgiveness or assumptions of debt.'* Funds from other
Federal financial assistance awards may be considered matching share funds only if authorized
by statute, which may be determined by EDA’s reasonable interpretation of the statute.'> To
allow EDA to verify the value of in-kind matching share, the applicant should document the
value of in-kind contributions in a matching share commitment letter and/or the budget
narrative and also provide supporting documentation as appropriate.

Applicants are strongly encouraged to work with the appropriate EDA representative
listed in Section G of this PWEAA NOFO to determine how in-kind contributions may be
utilized to satisfy the matching share requirement for their application.

3. Economic Distress Criteria

In order to be eligible for funding under this PWEAA NOFO, an applicant must propose
a project that meets EDA’s distress criteria. Applicants must self-define the appropriate region
geographically. The geographic area comprising a region need not be contiguous or defined by

' See Sections 204(c)(1) and (2) of PWEDA (42 U.S.C. § 3144) and 13 C.F.R. § 301.4(b)(5).

12 See 13 C.F.R. § 301.4(b)(5).

13 See 13 C.F.R. § 301.5.

14 See Section 204(b) of PWEDA (42 U.S.C. § 3144) and the definition of “In-Kind Contribution” at 13 C.F.R. §
300.3.

15 See the definition of “Local Share or Matching Share” at 13 C.F.R. § 300.3. See also 2 C.F.R. § 200.306.

Page 13 of 45





political boundaries but should constitute a cohesive area capable of undertaking self-sustained
economic development. Applicants must provide third-party data that clearly indicate that the
relevant region is subject to one (or more) of the following economic distress criteria: (i) an
unemployment rate that is, for the most recent 24-month period for which data are available, at
least one percentage point greater than the national average unemployment rate; (ii) per capita
income that is, for the most recent period for which data are available, 80 percent or less of the
national average per capita income; or (iii) a “Special Need,” as determined by EDA. !¢

EDA will review and evaluate documentation submitted by the applicant to determine
eligibility. EDA will reject any documentation of eligibility that the agency determines is
inaccurate or incomplete, which may cause the application to be rejected. EDA reserves the
right to request additional documentation or information from the applicant to make an
eligibility determination. The proposed project must meet EDA’s distress criteria as of the date
EDA receives a complete application. However, if an award has not been made within six
months of that date, EDA will then re-evaluate the project to determine continued eligibility for
investment assistance. If the project no longer meets EDA’s distress criteria, the project will no
longer be considered.

For construction projects (including design and engineering) the project must be located
within an eligible region. For non-construction projects, the investment’s scope of work must
primarily benefit an eligible region and stakeholders from that eligible area must be directly
engaged. EDA suggests that applicants work closely with the EDA representative listed for their
State as they define an eligible project in their region.

A proposed project may meet the regional eligibility criteria in one of the following
three ways:

1. The proposed project will be located in a region that meets EDA’s economic
distress criteria;

2. The proposed project is located in an Economic Development District (EDD)
that is located in a region that does not meet EDA’s economic distress criteria,
and EDA determines the proposed project will be of substantial direct benefit to
a geographic area within the EDD that meets EDA’s economic distress criteria;
or

3. The proposed project will be located in a geographic area of poverty or high
unemployment that meets EDA’s economic distress criteria, but which is located
in a region that overall does not meet EDA’s distress criteria.

Below are further details on economic distress criteria. See also 13 C.F.R. § 301.3(a).
a) Unemployment Rate & Per Capita Income

For economic distress levels based upon per capita income requirements, EDA
will base its determination upon the most recent American Community Survey
(ACS) published by the U.S. Census Bureau. For economic distress levels based
upon the unemployment rate, EDA will base its determination upon the most
recent data published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS), within the U.S.
Department of Labor. For eligibility based upon either per capita income

16 See Section 301(a)(3) of PWEDA (42 U.S.C. § 3161(a)(3)) and 13 C.F.R. § 301.3.
Page 14 of 45





requirements or the unemployment rate, when the ACS or BLS data, as
applicable, are not the most recent Federal data available, EDA will base its
decision upon the most recent Federal data from other sources (including data
available from the Census Bureau and the Bureaus of Economic Analysis, Labor
Statistics, Indian Affairs, or any other Federal source determined by EDA to be
appropriate). If no Federal data are available, an applicant must submit to EDA
the most recent data available from the State. The required State data must be for
the region where the project will be located, the geographic area where
substantial direct project benefits will occur, or the geographic area of poverty or
high unemployment, as applicable.!”

b) “Special Need” Criteria

For the purposes of determining eligibility based on a “Special Need”, an
applicant must provide current and appropriate economic and demographic
statistics for the applicable region to support the identified Special Need. EDA
will base its Special Need eligibility determination on whether the proposed
project meets the specific requirements outlined below or, in cases where
specific thresholds are not identified, on whether the data and information
provided by the applicant presents a compelling case that the region meets the
Special Need criteria, as defined by EDA.

A project may be eligible pursuant to a Special Need if the project is located in a
region that meets one or more of the criteria described below:!®

a. Closure or restructuring of industries or the loss of a major employer
essential to the regional economy as defined by:

i.  apublic announcement of an impending closure or restructuring of a firm
expected to occur within four (4) years of review of an application
submission; or

ii.  an actual closure or restructuring of a firm within the 24 months prior to
submission of an application, resulting in sudden job losses; AND

iii.  such threatened or actual closure results in sudden job losses meeting the
following dislocation criteria:

1. For regions with a population of at least 100,000, the threatened or
actual dislocation is 500 jobs, or one percent of the civilian labor
force (CLF), whichever is less.

2. For regions with a population up to 100,000, the threatened or actual
dislocation is 200 jobs, or one percent of the CLF, whichever is less.

b. Substantial out-migration or population loss.

¢. Underemployment, meaning employment of workers at less than full-time or
at less skilled tasks than their training or abilities permit.

d. Military base closures or realignments, defense contractor
reductions-in-force, or Department of Energy defense-related funding
reductions.

17 See Section 301 of PWEDA (42 U.S.C. § 3161) and 13 C.F.R § 301.3.

18 The following criteria are published in accordance with 13 C.F.R. § 301.3(a)(1)(iii) and define what may
constitute a “Special Need” (as defined in 13 C.F.R. § 300.3) sufficient to make a project eligible for Public Works
or EAA investment assistance, as described in Section C.3 of this announcement.

Page 15 of 45





i. A military base closure refers to a military base that was closed or is
scheduled for closure, realignment, or growth pursuant to the base closure
and realignment process or other Department of Defense (DOD) process.
Unless further extended by the Assistant Secretary for Economic
Development, the region is eligible from the date of DOD’s
recommendation for closure, realignment, or growth until five years after
the actual date of closing of the installation or five years after the
announced realignment or growth actually occurs.

ii. A defense contractor reduction-in-force refers to a defense contractor(s)
experiencing defense contract cancellations or reductions resulting from
official DOD announcements that have aggregate value of at least
$10 million per year. Actual dislocations must have occurred within one
year of the date an application is submitted to EDA for and threatened
dislocations must be anticipated to occur within two years of submittal of
an application to EDA. Defense contracts that expire in the normal course
of business will not be considered to meet this criterion.

iii. A Department of Energy defense-related funding reduction refers to a
Department of Energy facility that has experienced or will experience a
reduction of employment resulting from its defense mission change. The
region is eligible from the date of the Department of Energy
announcement of reductions until five years after the actual date of
reduced operations at the installation.

e. Natural or other major disasters or emergencies. A region that has received
one of the following disaster declarations is eligible:

1. A Presidentially declared disaster (declared under the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, as amended (42 U.S.C.

§ 5121 et seq.)); or

ii. A Federally declared disaster (pursuant to the Magnuson-Stevens Fishery
Conservation and Management Act, as amended (16 U.S.C. § 1861a(a));
the Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act, as amended (7
U.S.C. § 1961); or the Small Business Act, as amended (Pub. L. No. 85-
536, 15 U.S.C. § 631 et seq., 72 Stat. 384 (1958)).

Applicants must demonstrate a clear nexus between the needs created by the
declared disaster and the proposed project.

f. Extraordinary depletion of natural resources or other impact attributable to a
new or revised Federal regulation or policy that will have a significant impact
on a community’s ability to prevent an extraordinary depletion of natural
resources. For example, in the case of a Federal fishing regulation designed
to promote and sustain a community and its fishery in the long-term, EDA
could quickly help a coastal community respond to any short-term economic
dislocations.

g. Communities undergoing transition of their economic base as a result of
changing trade patterns.

h. A project located in a persistent poverty county is eligible. For purposes of
determining Special Need, the term “persistent poverty county” means any
county that has had 20 percent or more of its population living in poverty
over the past 30 years, as measured by the 1990 and 2000 decennial censuses
and the most recent Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates.

Page 16 of 45





1. The project 1) is located in or ii) is proximate to and intended to directly and
substantially benefit a designated “Qualified Opportunity Zone.” A current
list of Qualified Opportunity Zones designated by the U.S. Department of the
Treasury can be found at https://www.cdfifund.gov/pages/Opportunity-
Zones.aspx.

j. For ACC applications only, communities or regions that have been
impacted,'® or can reasonably demonstrate that they will be impacted, by coal
mining or coal power plant employment loss, or employment loss in the
supply chain industries® of either. Applications seeking ACC funding must
provide appropriate third party economic and demographic statistics for the
applicable community or region in order to document the extent to which
contractions in the coal economy have negatively impacted the community or
region.?! Applicants are encouraged to cite federal data resources that may
include, but are not limited to: (i) U.S. Department of Commerce (Bureau of
Economic Analysis, http://www.bea.gov/; U.S. Census Bureau, American
Community Survey (ACS), https://www.census.gov/programs-surveys/acs/);
(i1) U.S. Department of Labor (Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS),
http://www.bls.gov/); (iii) U.S. Department of Energy (Energy Information
Administration (EIA), https://www.eia.gov/); (iv) U.S. Department of Labor
(Mine Safety Health Administration, https://arlweb.msha.gov/
OpenGovernmentData/OGIMSHA .asp; Bureau of Indian Affairs (BIA)-
American Indian Population and Labor Force Reports, http://www.bia.gov/
WhatWeDo/Knowledge/Reports/index.htm).

k. For NCC applicants only, regions that have been impacted, or can reasonably
demonstrate that they will be impacted, by NPP closure(s). Applicants must
demonstrate the manner and extent to which a region has been impacted or
will be impacted by NPP closure(s). Geographic proximity to an NPP closure
is by itself insufficient to demonstrate eligibility for NCC funds.

1. Applicants seeking NCC funding in regions that have been impacted by
NPP closure(s) must provide appropriate third-party economic and/or
demographic data for the applicable region to document the extent to
which NPP closure(s) have negatively impacted the region. Such
applicants are encouraged to cite federal data resources that may include,
but are not limited to: (i) U.S. Department of Commerce (Bureau of
Economic Analysis, http://www.bea.gov/; U.S. Census Bureau, American
Community Survey (ACS), https://www.census.gov/programs-
surveys/acs/); (i1) U.S. Department of Labor (Bureau of Labor Statistics
(BLS), http://www.bls.gov/); (iii) U.S. Department of Energy (Energy

19 In general, EDA will consider applications for projects in communities and regions where the primary coal
economy contraction “event” (e.g., closure of a coal mine or a coal-fired power plant, closure of various coal
economy supply chain businesses, etc.) took place within 1-15 years prior to the application submission date.

20 Examples of supply chain industries include, but are not necessarily limited to, manufacturers of mining
equipment and parts for coal-fired power plants and transportation companies that carry coal. Note, this timeframe
is a range during which projects will generally be eligible; applicants may propose projects outside this timeframe,
but should take special care to demonstrate that the primary coal economy contraction “event” continues to
tangibly impact the community.

2l Examples of the types of acceptable data that applicants can use to demonstrate the negative impacts of local
and/or regional coal industry contractions include (and are not limited to) economic indicators, labor market
analyses, official announcements made by local and regional industries and firms, demographic, and industry data.

Page 17 of 45





Information Administration (EIA), https://www.eia.gov/); (iv) U.S.
Department of Labor (Mine Safety Health Administration, https://
arlweb.msha.gov/OpenGovernmentData/OGIMSHA .asp; (v) Bureau of
Indian Affairs (BIA)-American Indian Population and Labor Force
Reports, http://www.bia.gov/WhatWeDo/Knowledge/
Reports/index.htm); (vi) StatsAmerica, http://www.statsamerica.org; and
(vii) US Nuclear Regulatory Commission, http://www.nrc.gov. If federal
data is not available, applicants may consider demonstrating the negative
impacts of nuclear power plant closure(s) using data including but not
limited to local/regional economic indicators, labor market analyses,
official announcements made by local and regional industries and firms,
and demographic and industry data.

ii.  Applicants seeking NCC funding in regions that will be impacted in the
future by NPP closure(s) must provide documentation demonstrating that
the region will be negatively impacted in the future by NPP closure(s).
Such documentation may, but is not required to, take the form of an
announcement of future NPP closure and should be substantiated to the
extent possible by third-party data sources as listed in above in Section
C.3.b.k.i.

1. Other Special Need. The area is experiencing other special or extraordinary
economic adjustment needs, as determined by the Assistant Secretary for
Economic Development.

In addition to the above, all applications for funding based on Special Need must
demonstrate how the project will address the economic development needs of the region
resulting from that Special Need.

D. Application Submission Information

An applicant must submit a complete application, as detailed in Section D.2.a of this
PWEAA NOFO, to be considered for funding. EDA intends to review an application within 60
days of EDA’s receipt of the complete application. EDA may seek additional information or
documentation from the applicant to clarify information presented in the application. Please see
Section E of this PWEAA NOFO for more information on EDA’s review and selection process.

EDA strongly encourages applicants to consult with the EDA representative for their
State to discuss whether their project is in alignment with EDA’s Investment Priorities,
eligibility requirements, cost-sharing requirements, property standards, or other requirements
outlined in this PWEAA NOFO. This consultation is limited to clarification of technical matters
involving their proposed project, project alignment with EDA’s mission and Investment
Priorities, and all other relevant and publicly available information relating to general technical
matters.

1. Address to Request an Application

An applicant may obtain the appropriate application electronically at Grants.gov.
Applicants may search for this funding opportunity on Grants.gov using Funding Opportunity
Number “PWEAA2020”. All components of the appropriate application may be accessed and

Page 18 of 45





downloaded (in a screen-fillable format) at https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-
grants.html.

Applicants are advised that they must complete the registration process prior to
submitting an application through Grants.gov; please note, however, registration is not
required for an applicant to access, view, or download the application. Even though an applicant
may be able to view and download an application, if the applicant has not correctly completed
the Grants.gov registration process, the applicant will not be able to submit the application
electronically for EDA’s review. Alternatively, an applicant eligible for assistance under this
announcement may request a paper application by contacting the EDA representative listed for
their State under Section G of this PWEAA NOFO.

2. Content and Form of the Application

EDA has developed a suite of forms designed to address all types of assistance the
agency provides. In addition, Federal grant assistance forms from the Standard Form (SF) 424
family and certain Department of Commerce Forms (CD) forms are required as part of a
complete application. The tables in Section D.2.a below describe all the forms and other
documentation required for a complete application for each type of assistance EDA will provide
under this NOFO and may serve as a checklist for applicants in preparing their submissions.

All relevant forms must be signed electronically by the applicant’s Authorized
Organizational Representative (AOR); please see Section I of this PWEAA NOFO for
information on AOR requirements. The preferred electronic file format for attachments is
Adobe portable document format (PDF); however, EDA will accept electronic files in Microsoft
Word, WordPerfect, or Microsoft Excel formats. EDA will not accept paper, facsimile, or email
transmissions of applications. Please refer to important information on submitting your
application provided in Section D.4 of this PWEAA NOFO.

All documentation and data submitted should be current and applicable as of the date
submitted. Applicants are encouraged to contact the EDA representative for their State for
technical assistance before submitting an application under this PWEAA NOFO. EDA staff
members are available to provide applicants with technical assistance regarding application
requirements. Additionally, EDA may reach out to the applicant to clarify application materials
received.

a) What is Required for a Complete Application?

The following table provides a complete list of documents required for a complete
application based on the type of EDA assistance: construction, design and engineering (without
a construction component), non-construction, and RLF.

Applications for construction assistance (including applications for design and engineering
with construction activities) must include:

1. One Form SF-424 (Application for Federal Assistance) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

Page 19 of 45





10.

11.

. One Budget Narrative that clearly identifies and justifies how funds in each line

One Form SF-424C (Budget Information—Construction Programs) per project.

item of the budget (Form SF-424C) will be used to support the proposed project.
The Budget Narrative should specifically address each budget line item (including
both the Federal Share and matching non-Federal Share), and the narrative total
should match the total project costs listed in both the SF-424 question 18, line g,
and SF-424C (“Total Project Costs”). This includes describing any other Federal
funds that have been secured or requested to support the project (see Section A.1).
The Budget Narrative should include itemized valuations of any in-kind matching
funds. The non-Federal Share, whether in cash or in-kind, is expected to be paid out
at the same general rate as the Federal Share; however, if the applicant’s Budget
Narrative proposes otherwise, applicants must also include information that clearly
indicates what project elements the matching share funds will support and explain
why deviation from paying out at the same general rate is required for the project to
be implemented. *Please note: In lieu of a separate Budget Narrative, this
information may be included in the Preliminary Engineering Report as required by
Section C of the ED-900C.

One Form SF-424D (Assurances—Construction Programs) from each co-
applicant, as applicable.

One Form ED-900 (General Application for EDA Programs). Applicants seeking
ACC funding should note this information as a part of their response to Section B.1
of the form.

One Form ED-900A (Additional EDA Assurances for Construction or Non-
Construction Investments) from each co-applicant, as applicable.

One Form ED-900B (Beneficiary Information Form) from each beneficiary of the
proposed project, as applicable.

One Form ED-900C (EDA Application Supplement for Construction Programs)
and accompanying supporting documentation, e.g., Preliminary Engineering
Report. Form ED-900C requires, among other things, a description of real property
acquisition, which should include any past or proposed use of eminent domain.

One Form ED-900E (Calculation of Estimated Relocation and Land Acquisition
Expenses).

Documentation of Matching Share for each matching share source, such as a
commitment letter, board resolution, proof of bonding authority, or similar
document, as applicable. This should be attached to Form ED-900 (Section B.10.d
of the form).

One Environmental Narrative that will enable EDA to comply with its NEPA
responsibilities. A narrative outline that details required components may be
accessed in EDA’s website at: http://www.eda.gov/files/

012_Environmental Narrative_Template.zip.

Page 20 of 45





12.

13.

14.

15.

One Applicant’s Certification Clause (see Appendix A to the environmental
narrative noted above) completed separately and signed by each co-applicant, as
applicable.

One Form CD-511 (Certification Regarding Lobbying) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

One Form SF-LLL (Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) from each co-applicant, if
applicable.

Map of project site.

Applications for design and engineering assistance only (without a construction
component) must include:

1.

One Form SF-424 (Application for Federal Assistance) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

One Form SF-424C (Budget Information—Construction Programs).

One Budget Narrative that clearly identifies and justifies how funds in each line
item of the budget (Form SF-424C) will be used to support the proposed project.
The Budget Narrative should specifically address each budget line item (including
both the Federal Share and matching Non-Federal Share), and the narrative total
should match the total project costs listed in both the SF-424 question 18, line g,
and SF-424C (“Total Project Costs™). This includes describing any other Federal
funds that have been secured or requested to support the project (see Section A.1).
The Budget Narrative should include itemized valuations of any in-kind matching
funds. The non-Federal Share, whether in cash or in-kind, is expected to be paid out
at the same general rate as the Federal Share; however, if the applicant’s Budget
Narrative proposes otherwise, applicants must also include information that clearly
indicates what project elements the matching share funds will support and explain
why deviation from paying out at the same general rate is required for the project to
be implemented.

One Form SF-424D (Assurances—Construction Programs) from each co-
applicant, as applicable.

One Form ED-900 (General Application for EDA Programs). Applicants seeking
ACC funding should note this information as a part of their response to Section B.1
of the form.

One Form ED-900A (Additional EDA Assurances for Construction or Non—
Construction Investments) from each co-applicant, as applicable.

One Form ED-900D (Requirements for Design and Engineering Assistance).

Documentation of Matching Share for each matching share source, such as a
commitment letter, board resolution, proof of bonding authority, or similar

Page 21 of 45





document, as applicable. This should be attached to Form ED-900 (Section B.10.d
of the form).

9. An Environmental Narrative that will enable EDA to comply with its NEPA
responsibilities. A narrative outline that details required components may be
accessed in EDA’s website at: http://www.eda.gov/files/
012_Environmental Narrative_Template.zip.

10. One Applicant’s Certification Clause (see Appendix A to the Environmental
Narrative noted above) completed separately and signed by each co-applicant, as
applicable.

11. One Form CD-511 (Certification Regarding Lobbying) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

12. One Form SF-LLL (Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

Applications for non-construction assistance must include:

1. One Form SF-424 (Application for Federal Assistance) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

2. One Form SF-424A (Budget Information—Non-Construction Programs).

3. One Budget Narrative that clearly identifies and justifies how funds in each line
item of the budget (Form SF-424A) will be used to support the proposed project.
The Budget Narrative should specifically address each budget line item (including
both the Federal Share and matching Non-Federal Share), and the narrative total
should match the total project costs listed in both the SF-424 question 18, line g,
and SF-424A (“Totals”). This includes describing any other Federal funds that have
been secured or requested to support the project (see Section A.1). The Budget
Narrative should include itemized valuations of any in-kind matching funds. The
non-Federal Share, whether in cash or in-kind, is expected to be paid out at the
same general rate as the Federal Share; however, if the applicant’s Budget
Narrative proposes otherwise, applicants must also include information that clearly
indicates what project elements the matching share funds will support and explain
why deviation from paying out at the same general rate is required for the project to
be implemented.

4. One Form SF-424B (Assurances—Non-Construction Programs) from each
co-applicant, as applicable, unless as part of the registration process for SAM each
co-applicant has already completed the assurances for non-construction programs.
In that case, each co-applicant must inform EDA that this was completed in SAM.

5. One Form ED-900 (General Application for EDA Programs). Applicants seeking
ACC funding should note this information as a part of their response to Section B.1
of the form.

Page 22 of 45





6. One Form ED-900A (Additional EDA Assurances for Construction or Non—
Construction Investments) from each co-applicant, as applicable.

7. Documentation of Matching Share for each matching share source, such as a
commitment letter, board resolution, proof of bonding authority, or similar
document, as applicable. This should be attached to Form ED-900 (Section B.10.d
of the form).

8. One Form CD-511 (Certification Regarding Lobbying) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

9. One Form SF-LLL (Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

Applications for RLF assistance must include:

1. One Form SF-424 (Application for Federal Assistance) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

2. One Form SF-424A (Budget Information—Non-Construction Programs).

3. One Budget Narrative that clearly identifies and justifies how funds in each line
item of the budget (Form SF-424A) will be used to support the proposed project.
The Budget Narrative should specifically address each budget line item (including
both the Federal Share and matching Non-Federal Share), and the narrative total
should match the total project costs listed in both the SF-424 question 18, line g,
and SF-424A (“Totals”). This includes describing any other Federal funds that have
been secured or requested to support the project (see Section A.1). The Budget
Narrative should include itemized valuations of any in-kind matching funds. The
non-Federal Share, whether in cash or in-kind, is expected to be paid out at the
same general rate as the Federal Share; however, if the applicant’s Budget
Narrative proposes otherwise, applicants must also include information that clearly
indicates what project elements the matching share funds will support and explain
why deviation from paying out at the same general rate is required for the project to
be implemented.

4. One Form SF-424B (Assurances—Non-Construction Programs) from each
co-applicant, as applicable, unless as part of the registration process for SAM each
co-applicant has already completed the assurances for non-construction programs.
In that case, each co-applicant must inform EDA that this was completed in SAM.

5. One Form ED-900 (General Application for EDA Programs).

6. One Form ED-900A (Additional EDA Assurances for Construction or Non—
Construction Investments) from each co-applicant, as applicable.

7. One Form ED-900F (Supplement for Revolving Loan Fund Applications).

8. Documentation of Matching Share for each matching share source, such as a
commitment letter, board resolution, proof of bonding authority, or similar

Page 23 of 45





9.

10.

11.

document, as applicable. This should be attached to Form ED-900 (Section B.10.d
of the form).

One Draft RLF plan that addresses all components required by EDA’s regulation
at 13 C.F.R. § 307.9.

One Form CD-511 (Certification Regarding Lobbying) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

One Form SF-LLL (Disclosure of Lobbying Activities) from each co-applicant, as
applicable.

In addition, an application to support a business incubator, technology, or other type
of incubator or accelerator, regardless of the type of assistance being requested (i.e.,
construction or non-construction) must also include:

a. A feasibility study establishing the market demand for the specific start-up companies
proposed for incubation (technology, general business, bio-tech, manufacturing, etc.)
and the presence of necessary resources and community support;

b. Documentation with detailed demonstration that the applicant has the financial capacity
to operate the facility (if applicable) and reach a positive cash flow within a reasonable
period of time, which EDA generally expects to be three years; and

c. A management plan for operation that, at @ minimum, includes a/an:

1.

11.

iil.

1v.

V1.

Tenant/client selection policy that includes a description of the types of businesses
sought and any established selection criteria;

Tenant lease or license agreement (if applicable) that enumerates the shared services
to be provided; delineates the business assistance policy, including the provision of
management, technical, and training assistance, and the graduation policy; and
establishes periodic access to the tenant’s business records to permit assessment of
the financial and operational viability of the tenant’s business;

Business assistance policy that outlines the various types of assistance that the will
be provided to start-up firms, including how support will be provided to
tenants/clients with access to capital needed to grow their businesses successfully;

Staffing plan that details the talent and resources that will be dedicated to supporting
the startup companies accepted;

Tenant graduation policy that is documented as a provision of the tenant lease or
license agreement (if applicable) with clear requirements for tenant graduation from
the facility or services; and

Performance plan that includes how the entity will track the success of
tenants/clients, specifically identifying what performance measurement data are
proposed to be collected from tenants/clients and for what period of time during and
after the service period the data will be collected. This should also include members
of any oversight or policy board that will be responsible for setting performance

Page 24 of 45





goals, selecting or approving selections of staff, establishing and reviewing policy,
and monitoring performance.

Any applicant that proposes a project to support a business incubator, technology, or
other type of incubator or accelerator is strongly encouraged to contact the EDA representative
listed for their applicable State in Section G of this PWEAA NOFO to clarify technical matters
involving their proposed project.

b) Environmental and Historic Preservation Requirements

All applicants for EDA construction assistance (including design and engineering
assistance) are required to provide adequate environmental information. Each application will
be reviewed by EDA for compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) of
1969, as amended. During the NEPA review process, applicants may be instructed to contact
the designated State and/or Tribal Historic Preservation Officer (SHPO/THPO), provide
approvals from other governmental agencies, or provide more detailed environmental
information. EDA, after compliance with requirements for consultation with Federally-
recognized Indian Tribes, may require applicants to participate in Tribal consultation, as
necessary. The implementing regulations of NEPA require EDA to provide public notice of the
availability of project-specific environmental documents, such as environmental impact
statements, environmental assessments, findings of no significant impact, and records of
decision, to the affected public. For further guidance and information, please contact the
appropriate Regional Environmental Officer listed in Section G of this PWEAA NOFO.
Applicants will be notified of any changes to these requirements via Grants.gov.

¢) Copy of Negotiated Indirect Cost Rate Agreement (if applicable)

As noted in EDA’s Standard Terms and Conditions for Construction Projects
(Construction ST&Cs), indirect costs are generally not applicable to construction awards.

If indirect costs are included in the budget for a non-construction project, the applicant
must include documentation to support the indirect cost rate it is using. For most applicants, this
will entail the submission of a copy of its current, approved, and negotiated indirect cost rate
agreement (NICRA). The maximum dollar amount of allocable indirect costs for which EDA
will reimburse a recipient shall be the lesser of the (1) line-item amount for the Federal Share of
indirect costs contained in the EDA approved budget for the award, or (2) Federal Share of the
total allocable indirect costs of the award based on either (a) the indirect cost rate approved by
EDA (or applicable cognizant Federal agency), provided that the cost rate is current at the time
the costs were incurred and provided that the rate is approved on or before the award end date,
or (b) other acceptable documentation as indicated below.

If the applicant does not have a current or pending NICRA, it may propose indirect costs
in its budget; however, the applicant must prepare and submit an allocation plan and rate
proposal for approval within 90 days from the award start date. See 2 C.F.R. part 200 Apps. III,
IV, V, VI, VII for guidance. The allocation plan and the rate proposal shall be submitted to
EDA’s Office of Regional Affairs (or applicable cognizant Federal agency). If the applicant
chooses to pursue this option, it should include a statement in its Budget Narrative that it does
not have a current or pending NICRA and will submit an allocation plan and rate proposal to
EDA or the applicant’s cognizant Federal agency for approval.

Page 25 of 45





If the applicant (1) does not have a current NICRA and (2) has never received a
negotiated indirect cost rate, the applicant may alternatively elect to charge a de minimis rate of
10% of modified total direct costs subject to the exceptions of 2 C.F.R. § 200.414(f). The
applicant should include a statement in its Budget Narrative that it does not have a NICRA; it
has never received a negotiated indirect cost rate; and it is electing to charge the de minimis rate.

Note if the applicant is a State or local unit of government (or a Tribe) that receives less
than $35,000,000 in direct Federal funding per year it may submit any of the following:

1. A Certificate of Indirect Costs from DOI or EDA;

ii. Acknowledgment received from EDA and Certificate of Indirect Costs;
iii. Cost Allocation Plan approved by a Federal agency; or
iv. NICRA.

3. Unique Entity Identifier and System for Award Management (SAM)

To enable the use of a universal identifier and to enhance the quality of information
available to the public as required by the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
0f 2006, to the extent applicable,?? applicants are required to: (i) be registered in the SAM
before submitting their application; (ii) provide a valid unique entity identifier in their
application; and (iii) continue to maintain an active SAM registration with current information
at all times during which they have an active Federal award or an application or plan under
consideration by a Federal awarding agency. EDA may not make a Federal award to an
applicant until the applicant has complied with all applicable unique entity identifier and SAM
requirements, and if an applicant has not fully complied with the requirements by the time EDA
is ready to make an award, EDA may determine that the applicant is not qualified to receive an
award and use that determination as a basis for making an award to another applicant.
Recipients will be subject to reporting requirements, as identified in OMB guidance published
at 2 C.F.R. parts 25 and 170. The guidance set out at 2 C.F.R. parts 25 and 170 can be found at
the U.S. Government Publishing Office website at https://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/
ECFR?page=browse. Under “Browse” select “Title 2 — Grants and Agreements,” then click
“Go” and follow the link to parts “2-199.” Note that SAM now encompasses the Central
Contractor Registration (CCR) and that the unique entity identifier is commonly referred to as
the Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) Number. The recipient must keep its SAM
registration current.

4. Submission Dates and Times

There are no application deadlines under this PWEAA NOFO. EDA plans to accept
applications on a rolling basis subject to the availability of funds or until the NOFO is amended
in relevant part or a new PWEAA NOFO is published. EDA may cancel or withdraw this
NOFO at any time.

22 Individuals who apply for or receive agency awards or direct subawards are exempt from the requirements of the
unique entity identifier and SAM. See 2 C.F.R. § 25.110(b). However, individuals are not eligible to receive
awards under EDA’s Public Works and EAA programs.

Page 26 of 45





a) How to Submit an Application?
i. Electronic Submission

EDA accepts electronic submissions of applications through Grants.gov. EDA will
not accept paper, facsimile, or email transmissions of applications except as provided below.

Once an application is submitted, it undergoes a validation process through Grants.gov
during which the application may be accepted or rejected by the system. Please be advised that
the validation process may take 24 to 48 hours to complete. Applications that contain errors will
be rejected by Grants.gov and will not be forwarded to EDA for review. The applicant must
correct any errors before Grants.gov will accept and validate the application.

Please see Section I of this PWEAA NOFO for more detailed instructions and
information on the requirements for submitting applications electronically via Grants.gov.

ii. Alternatives to Electronic Submission.

If an applicant is unable to submit an application electronically for reasons beyond the
control of the applicant, EDA, in its sole discretion, may pre-approve in writing submission
via an alternate method (e.g., email).

5. Intergovernmental Review

Applications submitted under this PWEAA NOFO are subject to the requirements of
Executive Order (EO) 12372, “Intergovernmental Review of Federal Programs,” if a State has
adopted a process under EO 12372 to review and coordinate proposed Federal financial
assistance and direct Federal development (commonly referred to as the “single point of contact
review process”). All applicants must give States and local governments a reasonable
opportunity to review and comment on the proposed Project, including review and comment
from area-wide planning organizations in metropolitan areas.”* To find out more about a State’s
process under EO 12372, applicants may contact their State’s Single Point of Contact (SPOC).
Names and addresses of some States” SPOCs are listed on OMB’s website at
https://www.whitehouse.gov/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/SPOC-February-2019.pdf. Question
19 of Form SF-424 allows applicants to demonstrate compliance with EO 12372.

An applicant seeking funding under the Public Works program or for a construction
project or RLF grant under the EAA program that is not a State, Indian Tribe, or general
purpose local governmental authority must afford the appropriate general purpose local
governmental authority in the project region a minimum of 15 days to review and comment on
the proposed project and provide with its application a statement of its efforts to seek comments
and either (i) a copy of the comments received and a statement of any actions to address those
comments or (ii) a statement that no comments were received.

6. Funding Restrictions

In general, EDA does not reimburse pre-award project costs. Applicants that are in need
of such reimbursement should work closely with the EDA representative for their State to

2 As provided for in 15 C.F.R. part 13.
Page 27 of 45





determine if their pre-award costs may be considered for reimbursement. In order for contracted
pre-award costs to be eligible for reimbursement, the applicant must competitively procure
services pursuant to the Federal government’s procurement procedures. All pre-award costs are
incurred at an applicant’s own risk and will be considered for reimbursement, in EDA’s sole
discretion, only if an applicant receives an award and such costs are approved by EDA in
writing. Under no circumstances will EDA or DOC be held responsible for application
preparation expenditures, which are distinguished from pre-award project costs.

7. Other Submission Requirements

After EDA reviews your application, EDA may contact the applicant to request any
necessary additional documentation to clarify or substantiate submitted application materials,
depending on the type of project proposed. Examples of additional documentation may include,
but are not limited to, title verification, documentation of the value of in-kind contributions,
evidence all funding is available and committed to the project, or documentation required for
environmental or legal compliance. This additional documentation will be required to ensure
that the proposed project complies with all applicable rules and regulations prior to EDA’s
issuance of an award. EDA will provide applicants a reasonable amount of time to provide any
additional documentation. Failure to provide complete and accurate supporting documentation
in a timely manner when requested by EDA may result in the denial of an application.

EDA may make changes or additions to this PWEAA NOFO. All changes will be
communicated through Grants.gov.

E. Application Review Information

Throughout the review and selection process, EDA reserves the right to seek
clarification in writing from applicants whose applications are being reviewed. This may
include reaching out to applicants and proposing they seek funding under a different EDA
program or other Federal financial assistance program under which they may be more
competitively assessed. EDA may additionally ask applicants to clarify application materials,
objectives, and work plans, or modify budgets or other specifics necessary to comply with
Federal requirements. Before applications are reviewed as described below, EDA will conduct
an initial screening to verify that all required forms are complete and all required documentation
is included. Applications that do not contain all elements listed in Section D.2.a of this PWEAA
NOFO will not be reviewed.

1. Review and Selection Process
a) Investment Review Committee (IRC)

Each Regional Office will convene periodic IRCs as necessary depending on the volume
of applications, that consist of at least four EDA staff members (except in the case of an IRC to
review ACC applications, which need only consist of three EDA staff members) to review each
complete application. Before the IRC reviews an application EDA will conduct an
administrative review to determine that the application is complete.

All IRC members will review each complete application before the IRC discussion and
evaluation. The IRC will make a group evaluation of the merits of each application based on the
extent to which the application meets the program-specific award and application requirements

Page 28 of 45





provided in 13 C.F.R. part 305 for Public Works investments and 13 C.F.R. part 307 for EAA
investments.

For construction and non-construction projects (including NCC and ACC
projects), except Strategy Grant proposals, the IRC will use the following criteria in its
review, with each criterion receiving equal weight:

1. The project’s sustainability/durability, including the extent to which the project
demonstrates support from regional stakeholders (private, public, and non-profit
entities, etc.);

ii.  The applicant’s organizational capacity, including its financial and management
capacity;

iii.  The project’s alignment with the regional CEDS or equivalent EDA-accepted
economic development strategy, including the extent to which the project is
aligned with and integrated into other public or private investments currently
ongoing or planned for the community and region;

iv.  The project’s demonstrated alignment with EDA’s current Investment Priorities;

v.  The project’s demonstrated ability to foster creation and/or retention of high-
quality jobs and promote private investment in the regional economy;

vi.  The extent to which the project will enable the community/region to become
more economically diversified and prosperous; and

vii.  The project’s feasibility, which may include the availability and committed
nature of proposed matching funds.

In addition to the above criteria, for ACC projects only, the IRC also will equally weigh:

viii.  The integration and/or alignment of the impacted region’s workforce
development needs and priorities with the economic development strategy
referenced in the application;

ix.  The extent to which the project objectives are designed to create jobs that pay
family-supporting wages, create career pathways for workers, and are linked to
industry-recognized credentials for high-demand positions; and

X.  The geographic impact and resulting economic benefit of the proposed scope of
work.

Note: Throughout the application review and selection process, ACC, EAA, NCC,
and Public Works projects will be evaluated independently. While separate, these
evaluations may occur concurrently. As stated above, each ACC project evaluation will be
conducted based on both EAA and ACC evaluation criteria.

Based on its consideration of the above factors, the IRC will prepare a priority order of
funding recommendations for the Regional Director. EDA’s final decision on whether to fund a
project is dependent upon the ability of the applicant to provide sufficient documentation of the
project’s compliance with applicable rules and regulations.

EDA intends to provide applicants written notification of the outcome of the IRC within
60 days of EDA’s receipt of the complete application and any additional materials and
information required for the review.

Page 29 of 45





b) Due Diligence

If the IRC recommends an application, the applicant still may have to complete certain
due diligence requirements before EDA can make an award. After an applicant has been
notified that its application has been recommended by the IRC, EDA may request that the
applicant submit additional documents and information to allow EDA to fully evaluate
compliance with applicable rules and regulations.

For example, in the case of construction projects, such additional due diligence may
include:

1. Title verification;

ii.  Proof of project ownership;

iii.  Documentation of matching funds; and

iv.  Documentation required for environmental or legal compliance. This may
include, but is not limited to: 404 Clean Water Act permits from the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers and accompanying environmental documentation
(environmental assessment or environmental impact statement), Phase I and
Phase II environmental assessments, State environmental assessment
documentation (for compliance with State environmental statutes such as the
Massachusetts Environmental Policy Act (MEPA) or the California
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)), archeological and biological surveys, and
proof of coordination with resource agencies.

If the applicant provides the requested information and supporting documentation in a
timely fashion and EDA determines the project is fully compliant with applicable rules and
regulations, the application will be forwarded to the Regional Director for a final decision and
award approval. Applicants that do not provide the additional information and supporting
documentation in a timely fashion or who are deemed not to be in compliance with applicable
rules and regulations will receive notification their application has been denied.

¢) Grants Officer’s Decision

Applications recommended by the IRC and deemed fully compliant with applicable
rules and regulations will be forwarded to the Regional Director, who is the designated Grants
Officer under this PWEAA NOFO. Each Regional Director has been delegated the final
authority regarding funding of applications and may select a project for funding that differs
from the IRC’s recommendations based on any of the following selection factors:

1. The relative economic distress of the region;

2. For Public Works projects, the extent to which the selection of the application,
alone or in the context of other applications, supports EDA’s compliance with
appropriations law requirements and report language guidance;

3. The likelihood a given project will start quickly, realistically achieve project
goals, and catalyze additional resources;

4. The extent to which the application meets the overall objectives of Section 2 of
PWEDA (42 U.S.C. § 3121);

5. For ACC projects, the extent to which the project proposes an implementation
activity that supports economic diversification, job creation, capital investment,
and workforce development and re-employment opportunities;

Page 30 of 45





6. The applicant’s performance under previous Federal financial assistance awards,
including whether the grantee submitted required performance reports and data;

7. The availability of program funding; and

8. The extent to which the project supports EDA’s goals of geographic balance in
distribution of program funds, project types, organizational type (to include
smaller and rural organizations) and the overall portfolio.

The Regional Director’s final decision must be consistent with EDA’s and DOC’s
published policies. Any time a Regional Director makes a selection that differs from the IRC’s
recommendation, the Regional Director will document the rationale for the decision in writing.

2. Federal Awardee Performance and Integrity System (FAPIIS) Review

EDA, prior to making a Federal award with a total amount of Federal Share greater than
the simplified acquisition threshold, is required to review and consider any information about
the applicant that is in the designated integrity and performance system accessible through SAM
(currently FAPIIS). See 41 U.S.C. § 2313.

Each applicant, at its option, may review information in the designated integrity and
performance systems accessible through SAM and comment on any information about itself that
a Federal awarding agency previously entered and is currently in the designated integrity and
performance system accessible through SAM. EDA will consider any comments by the
applicant, in addition to the other information in the designated integrity and performance
system, in making a judgment about the applicant's integrity, business ethics, and record of
performance under Federal awards when completing the review of risk posed by applicants as
described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.205.

F. Federal Award Administration Information
1. Federal Award Notification

If an application is selected for funding and the applicant successfully and timely
completes all due diligence requirements, the expectation is that the EDA Grants Officer will
issue the grant award (Form CD-450), which is the authorizing financial assistance award
document and includes Specific Award Conditions and, as applicable, the DOC Financial
Assistance Standard Terms and Conditions (DOC ST&Cs), the EDA Revolving Loan Fund
Financial Assistance Award Standard Terms and Conditions (RLF ST&Cs), or the EDA
Construction ST&Cs, as described in Section F.2.b, below.

By signing Form CD-450, the applicant agrees to comply with all award provisions.
EDA will provide Form CD-450 via the award package to the applicant’s authorized
representative. The applicant’s authorized representative must sign and return the Form CD-450
without modification within 30 calendar days of the date of EDA’s signature on the form.

If an applicant is awarded funding, neither DOC nor EDA is under any obligation to
provide any additional future funding in connection with that award or to make any future
award(s). Amendment or renewal of an award to increase funding or to extend the period of
performance is at the discretion of DOC and EDA.

Page 31 of 45





EDA will notify unsuccessful applicants in writing to the applicant’s authorized
representative. EDA will retain unsuccessful applications in accordance with EDA’s record
retention schedule.

2. Administrative and National Policy Requirements

a) Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit
Requirements

Recipients of an EDA award will be bound by the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance) as set forth in 2 C.F.R. part 200. See a copy of these regulations at:
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2016-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2016-title2-vol1-part200.pdf.
Please note that the Uniform Guidance superseded DOC’s Uniform Administrative
Requirements, which were found at 15 C.F.R. parts 14 and 24.

b) DOC Financial Assistance Standard Terms and Conditions

For all projects except construction awards, DOC will apply the DOC ST&Cs applicable
on the date of the award. The DOC ST&Cs may be accessed at the following website:
http://www.osec.doc.gov/oam/grants_management/policy/default.htm.

For RLF awards, in addition to the DOC ST&Cs, EDA will apply the EDA RLF
ST&Cs. The RLF ST&Cs may be accessed at https://www.eda.gov/tools/grantee-forms/ under
the header “Standard Terms and Conditions for RLF and Construction Projects”.

For construction awards, EDA will apply the Construction ST&Cs. The Construction
ST&Cs may be accessed at https://www.eda.gov/tools/grantee-forms/ under the header
“Standard Terms and Conditions for RLF and Construction Projects”.

¢) DOC Pre-Award Notification Requirements

DOC will apply the Pre-Award Notification Requirements for Grants and Cooperative
Agreements effective December 26, 2014, 79 Fed. Reg. 78,390. The Pre-Award Notice may be
accessed at the Government Printing Office (GPO) website at http://www.gpo.gov/
fdsys/pkg/FR-2014-12-30/pdf/2014-30297.pdf.

3. Reporting

a. All recipients are required to submit financial, performance, and impact reports
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the grant award, generally no less
than semi-annually. All project progress and financial reports must be submitted
to the applicable EDA program officer in an electronic format to be determined
at the time of award.

b. The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act of 2006 includes a
requirement for awardees of applicable Federal grants to report information
about first-tier subawards? and executive compensation under Federal assistance

24 A first-tier subaward means an award provided by the recipient to a subrecipient for the subrecipient to carry out
as part of a Federal award.

Page 32 of 45





awards issued in FY 2011 or later. All awardees of applicable grants and
cooperative agreements are required to report to the Federal Subaward Reporting
System (FSRS) available at www.FSRS.gov on all sub-awards over $25,000.
Please see the OMB guidance published at 2 C.F.R. part 170 (2015), which can
be accessed at http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2015-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-
2015-title2-voll-part170.pdf.

EDA may require additional data on activities, outputs, and actual impact of the
funded investment, pursuant to the Government Performance and Results Act
(GPRA), as well as specified under the specific terms and conditions of the EDA
grant award. For example, recipients may be expected to continuously track their
engagement activities within the scope of work, other beneficiaries, and project-

related stakeholders. They may also be expected to collect data on the outputs
and impacts of their activities, such as, for example, the number of beneficiary
strategic plans developed, the number of new business partnerships formed, or
new capabilities acquired using surveys of beneficiaries or clients if necessary.
EDA will specify the data collection techniques and reporting mechanisms to be

used.

G. Federal Awarding Agency Contacts

For questions concerning this PWEAA NOFO, or more information about EDA
programs, you may contact the appropriate EDA representative listed below. An EDA contact
for each State is provided for PW and non-ACC EAA projects. An EDA contact for each EDA
Regional Office is provided for ACC projects and environmental inquiries. Updated contact
information can be found on EDA’s website at https://www.eda.gov/contact/.

Atlanta Regional Office

H. Philip Paradice, Jr., Regional Director

401 West Peachtree Street, NW, Suite 1820, Atlanta, GA 30308-3510

Alabama
Michael Mills
mmills@eda.gov
404-730-3020

Florida

Greg Vaday
gvaday@eda.gov
404-730-3009

(404) 730-3002 Main Office
(404) 730-3025 Fax

Georgia
Jonathan Corso
jeorso@eda.gov
404-730-3023

Kentucky and ACC
Bertha Partin
bpartin@eda.gov
404-730-3026

Page 33 of 45





Mississippi

Gil Patterson
gpatterson2@eda.gov
404-730-3032

South Carolina
Robin Cooley
rcooley@eda.gov
803-253-3640

North Carolina
Hillary Sherman
hsherman@eda.gov
404-730-3013

Tennessee

Lucas Blankenship
Iblankenship@eda.gov
404-730-3010

Environmental Officer
Keith Dyche
kdyche@eda.gov
404-730-3029

Austin Regional Office

Jorge Ayala, Regional Director
903 San Jacinto, Suite 206, Austin, TX 78701
(512) 381-8150 Main Office

Louisiana and Arkansas
Jason Wilson
Jwilsonl@eda.gov
512-420-7738

New Mexico, West Texas
Trisha Korbas
tkorbas@eda.gov
720-626-1499

(512) 499-0478 Fax

Oklahoma, North Texas and ACC

Jessica Falk
jfalk@eda.gov
512-381-8168

South Texas
Robert Peche
rpechel @eda.gov
512-568-7732

Environmental Officer
Corey Dunn
cdunn@eda.gov
512-381-8169

Chicago Regional Office

Susan Brehm, Regional Counsel
230 South Dearborn Street, Suite 3280, Chicago, IL 60604-1512
(312) 353-8143 Main Office

(312) 353-8575 Fax

Page 34 of 45





Illinois, Minnesota
Darrin Fleener
dfleener@eda.gov
312-789-9753

Indiana, Ohio
Kyle Darton
kdarton@eda.gov
312-789-9752

Michigan, Wisconsin
Lee Shirey
Ishirey(@eda.gov
312-789-9751

Environmental Officer and ACC
Robin Bush

rbush@eda.gov

312-789-9750

Denver Regional Office

Angela Belden Martinez, Regional Director
1244 Speer Boulevard, Suite 431, Denver, CO 80204
(303) 844-4715 Main Office

(303) 844-3968 Fax

Colorado, Utah
Trent Thompson
tthompson@eda.gov
303-844-5452

Montana, Wyoming and ACC
Kirk Keysor

kkeysor@eda.gov
406-599-9795

North Dakota, South Dakota,
Western Iowa

Alex Smith
ASmithl@eda.gov
720-402-7686

Eastern Iowa, Eastern and Central
Missouri

Steve Castaner

scastaner@eda.gov

573-590-1194

Nebraska, Kansas, Western
Missouri

Mark Werthmann
mwerthmann@eda.gov
913-894-1586

Environmental Officer
Jenny Benz
jbenz@eda.gov
303-844-5363

Philadelphia Regional Office

Linda Cruz-Carnall, Regional Director
Robert N.C. Nix Federal Building
900 Market Street, Room 602
Philadelphia, PA 19107
(215) 597-4603 Main Office

(215) 597-1063 Fax

Page 35 of 45





Connecticut

Chivas Grannum
CGrannum@eda.gov
215-597-8723

Delaware

Kevin Quinn
kquinn@eda.gov
267-687-4317

District of Columbia, Maryland
Alma Plummer
aplummer@eda.gov
215-597-7538

Maine, New Hampshire, Rhode
Island

Alan Brigham
abrigham@eda.gov
207-317-7692

Massachusetts
Debra Beavin
dbeavin@eda.gov
215-597-8719

New Jersey, New York
Edward Hummel
ehummel@eda.gov
215-316-2124

Pennsylvania
Christopher Casper
Ccasperl@eda.gov
215-597-1074

Puerto Rico, Virgin Islands
Juan Bauza
jbauza@eda.gov
215-435-2212

Vermont

Matthew Suchodolski
msuchodolski@eda.gov
215-597-1242

Virginia

Lauren Stuhldreher
Istuhldreher@eda.gov
215-764-0427

West Virginia and ACC
Tracey Rowan

trowan@eda.gov
304-533-4497

Environmental Officer
Megan Coll
mcoll@eda.gov
215-597-8795

Seattle Regional Office

A. Leonard Smith, Regional Director
Jackson Federal Building
915 Second Avenue, Room 1890, Seattle, WA 98174-1012
(206) 220-7660 Main Office
(206) 220-7669 Fax

Alaska Arizona, Washington
Shirley Kelly Richard Berndt
Skelly2@eda.gov rberndt@eda.gov
907-271-2272 206-220-7682

Page 36 of 45





California (Northern and Central Oregon, Idaho

Coast) Frances Sakaguchi — Acting EDR
Malinda Matson fsakaguchi@eda.gov
Mmatsonl@eda.gov 206-220-7693

916-235-0088
Environmental Officer

California (Southern and Central Rowena DeFato

Valley), Nevada rdefato@eda.gov
Wilfred Marshall 206-220-7703
Wmarshall@eda.gov
310-348-5386 ACC

Brian Parker
Hawaii, Guam, Northern Mariana BParker3@eda.gov

Islands, American Samoa, 206-220-7675

Marshall Islands, Federated States
of Micronesia, Palau

Herbert Thweatt

hthweatt@eda.gov

808-541-3391

H. Other Information
1. Right to Use Information

DOC reserves the right to use information contained in applications submitted under this
opportunity, as well as all reports and performance data submitted by recipients to undertake an
evaluation of its programs, either through its staff or by hiring a third party. The applicant
acknowledges and understands information and data contained in applications for financial
assistance, as well as information and data contained in financial, performance, and other reports
submitted by applicants, may be used by the DOC in conducting reviews and evaluations of its
financial assistance programs. For this purpose, applicant information and data may be accessed,
reviewed and evaluated by DOC employees, other Federal employees, Federal agents and
contractors, and/or by non-Federal personnel, all of whom enter into appropriate confidentiality
and nondisclosure agreements covering the use of such information. As may be provided in the
terms and conditions of a specific financial assistance award, applicants are expected to support
program reviews and evaluations by submitting required financial and performance information
and data in an accurate and timely manner and by cooperating with DOC and external program
evaluators. In accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.303(e), applicants must take reasonable measures
to safeguard protected personally identifiable information and other confidential or sensitive
personal or business information created or obtained in connection with a DOC Federal financial
assistance award.

2. Freedom of Information Act Disclosure

The Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552) (FOIA) and DOC’s implementing
regulations at 15 C.F.R. part 4 set forth the rules and procedures to make requested material,
information, and records publicly available. Unless prohibited by law and to the extent permitted

Page 37 of 45





under FOIA, contents of applications submitted by applicants may be released in response to
FOIA requests. In the event that an application contains information or data that the applicant
deems to be confidential commercial information, that information should be identified,
bracketed, and marked as “Privileged, Confidential, Commercial or Financial Information.”
Based on these markings, the confidentiality of the contents of those pages will be protected to
the extent permitted by law.

3. Notice of Government-Wide Procurement Restriction

The general rule for Federal financial assistance is that contractors that develop draft
specifications, requirements, statements of work, invitations for bids or requests for proposals are
prohibited from competing for the final procurement. For instance, a professional engineer or
architect who prepared the Preliminary Engineering Report for an EDA application would be
excluded from bidding on the same work under the award. Under 2 C.F.R § 200.319 and
200.317, only State recipients are expressly exempt from this prohibition. Local governments
and Indian Tribes may also take advantage of the exemption in two narrow circumstances: (i) if
they are required (by statute, for example) to follow the State’s procurement rules in full and
without exception; or (ii) if they are required to follow a specific State procurement rule that
creates an explicit conflict with the prohibition in 2 C.F.R. § 200.319(a) (i.e., there is a statute
that requires or permits the local government or Indian Tribe to award the final procurement to
the same contractor that developed the draft specifications). Absent one of these two scenarios,
the local government or Indian Tribe must comply with the prohibition. Applicants are
encouraged to contact the EDA representative listed for their applicable State in Section G of this
PWEAA NOFO with any questions regarding application of this regulation.

4. Past Performance and Non-Compliance with Award Provisions

Unsatisfactory performance under prior Federal awards may result in an application not
being considered for funding. Failure to comply with any or all of the provisions of an award
may have a negative impact on future funding by the DOC (or any of its operating units) may be
considered grounds for any or all of the following actions: (1) establishing an account receivable;
(2) withholding payments to the recipient under any DOC award(s); (3) changing the method of
payment from advance to reimbursement only; (4) imposing other specific award conditions; (5)
suspending any active DOC award(s); and (6) terminating any active DOC award(s).

5. Restrictions Governing Making Grants to Corporations Convicted of Federal
Felony and Federal Criminal Tax Violations, Unpaid Federal Tax Assessments,
and Delinquent Federal Tax Returns

In accordance with current Federal appropriations law, execution by an applicant of the
Certification Regarding Federal Felony and Federal Criminal Tax Convictions, Unpaid Federal
Tax Assessments and Delinquent Federal Tax Returns (see Attachment 1) will be required in a
format requested by EDA before any award will be made under this PWEAA NOFO.

Specifically, if an applicant is a corporation as defined in the Certification, it is required

to sign and return the Attachment 1, Part I Certification. In addition, all applicants applying for
financial assistance awards in excess of $5 million are required to sign the Attachment 1, Part 11

Page 38 of 45





certification. The applicant will be required to submit these certifications, signed by its AOR,
after being contacted by EDA that the IRC has recommended its application as described in
Section E.1 of this PWEAA NOFO.

6. EDA’s Non-Relocation Policy

Should an application be selected for award, the recipient will be required to adhere
to a specific award condition relating to EDA’s non-relocation policy as follows:

In signing this award of financial assistance, Recipient(s) attests that EDA funding is not
intended by the Recipient to assist its efforts to induce the relocation of existing jobs
within the U.S. that are located outside of its jurisdiction to within its jurisdiction in
competition with other U.S. jurisdictions for those same jobs. In the event that EDA
determines that its assistance was used for those purposes, EDA retains the right to
pursue appropriate enforcement action in accord with the Standard Terms and Conditions
of the Award, including suspension of disbursements and termination of the award for
convenience or material noncompliance, which may include the establishment of a debt
requiring the Recipient to reimburse EDA.

For purposes of ensuring that EDA assistance will not be used to merely transfer jobs
from one location in the United States to another, each applicant must inform EDA of all
employers that constitute primary beneficiaries of the project assisted by EDA. EDA will
consider an employer to be a “primary beneficiary” if: (i) the employer is specifically
named in the application as benefitting from the project, and the applicant estimates that
the employer will create or save 100 or more permanent jobs as a result of the investment
assistance (if the jobs in question were originally located in a smaller community, EDA
may extend this policy to the relocation of 50 or more jobs); or (ii) the employer is or will
be located in an EDA-assisted building, port, facility, or industrial, commercial, or
business park constructed or improved in whole or in part with investment assistance
prior to EDA’s final disbursement of funds.

7. Audit Requirements

Single or program-specific audits shall be performed in accordance with the requirements
contained in the Uniform Guidance (see 2 C.F.R. part 200, Subpart F, “Audit Requirements”).
The Uniform Guidance requires any non-Federal entity (i.e., non-profit organizations, including
non-profit institutions of higher education and hospitals, States, local governments, and Indian
Tribes) that expends Federal awards of $750,000 or more in the recipient’s fiscal year to conduct
a single or program-specific audit in accordance with the requirements set out in the OMB
Uniform Guidance.

8. Implementing the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

The U.S. Department of Justice has issued revised regulations implementing Title II of
the ADA (28 C.F.R. Part 35; 75 Fed. Reg. 56,164 (Sep. 15, 2010), as amended by 76 Fed. Reg.
13,285 (Mar. 11, 2011)) and Title III of the ADA (28 C.F.R. Part 36; 75 Fed. Reg. 56,236 (Sep.
15, 2010), as amended by 76 Fed. Reg. 13,286 (Mar. 11, 2011).

Page 39 of 45





I. Instructions for Application Submission via Grants.gov

Register early and submit early. In order to submit an application through Grants.gov,
an applicant must register for a Grants.gov user ID and password. Note that this process can take
between three to five business days or as long as four weeks if all steps are not completed
correctly. To avoid delays, EDA strongly recommends that applicants start this process as soon
as possible before applying. Information about the Grants.gov registration process for
organizations can be found at http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/organization-
registration.html. Please note that organizations already registered with Grants.gov do not need
to re-register; however, all registered organizations must keep their registration for SAM, which

includes the CCR database, up-to-date through sam.gov or their applications will not be accepted
by Grants.gov.

Authorized Organizational Representative (AOR) requirement. Applicants must
register as organizations, not as individuals. As part of the registration process, you will register
at least one AOR for your organization. AORs registered at Grants.gov are the only officials with
the authority to submit applications at Grants.gov, so please ensure that your organization’s
application is submitted by an AOR. If the application is submitted by anyone other than your
organization’s AOR, it will be rejected by the Grants.gov system and cannot be considered by

EDA. Note that a given organization may designate multiple individuals as AORs for Grants.gov
purposes.

The most up-to-date instructions for application submission via Grants.gov can be found
at https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/workspace-overview.html. In order to begin,
complete, and submit your application:

- Navigate to https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/workspace-
overview.html;

- Click “Get Application Package”;

- In “Funding Opportunity Number” field, enter “PWEAA2020”;

- Click “Search”;

- Under the “Actions” column, click the “Apply” link that corresponds with this
opportunity;

- Enter your email address (if you would like to receive updates from Grants.gov
regarding this grant opportunity) or check the box that indicates you do not wish to
provide it, then click “Submit”;

- Choose to apply using Workspace by clicking “Login to Apply Now”;

- Follow the instructions provided on the Grants.gov website and on each webpage to
complete and submit your application;

- For detailed step-by-step guidance on how to create a workspace, an application,
and submit a workspace package, see the Grants.gov Online User Guide. Navigate
to www.grants.gov and select “Apply for a Grant with Workspace” located in the
banner or see https://www.grants.gov/help/html/help/
index.htm?calling A pp=custom#t=Applicants%2FGrantApplications.htm.

Page 40 of 45





Field limitations and special characters. Please be advised that Grants.gov provides the
following notice with respect to form field limitations and special characters:

Are there restrictions on file names for any attachment I include with my
application?

Please limit file names to 50 characters and do not use special characters (example: &, -
,*,%,/,#) in attachment names and application form fields (including periods (.), blank
spaces and accent marks) or attach documents with the same name. An underscore
(example: my Attached File.pdf) may be used to separate a file name. Please note that if
these guidelines are not followed, your application may be rejected.

What kind of information can be entered into form fields within my application?

Grants.gov applications offer fields to enter a set amount of data. When the limit is
reached for a certain field, you will no longer be able to enter data into that field. For
every form, there are different limitations to the data that you are allowed to enter (this
varies between agency and form). Refer to the agency instructions available for download
with the application for more detail.

Do not use special characters (example: &,-,*,%,/,#) within the application form fields
including periods (.), blank spaces and accent marks; an underscore may be used. Please
note that if these guidelines are not followed, your application may be rejected.

In EDA’s experience, use of apostrophes (‘) in file names and fillable fields of required
forms has resulted in application submission issues. Accordingly, please periodically check the
status of your application to make sure it has been validated, and use file naming conventions
that do not negatively affect your application submission.

If a response exceeds the field limit requirements of any form, including Form ED-900,
the applicant is advised to include the response as an attachment to the application. The applicant
should check the ‘Attachments’ box under ‘Optional Documents for Submission’ in the
application, and clearly indicate in the form field that the information is included as an electronic
file.

Verify That Your Submission Was Successful. Applicants should save and print
written proof of an electronic submission made at Grants.gov. Applicants can expect to receive
multiple emails regarding the status of their submission. Since email communication can be
unreliable, applicants must proactively check on the status of their application if they do not
receive email notifications within a day of submission.

An applicant should expect to receive two initial emails from Grants.gov: the first will
confirm receipt of the application, and the second will indicate that the application has either
been successfully validated by the system before transmission to EDA or has been rejected due
to errors. Applicants should be aware that it may take up to two business days after Grants.gov
receives an application for applicants to receive email notification of an error. Applicants will
receive a third email once EDA has retrieved their application.

Page 41 of 45





EDA requests applicants refrain from submitting multiple copies of the same application.
Applicants should save and print both the confirmation screen provided on the Grants.gov
website after the applicant has submitted an application and the confirmation email sent by
Grants.gov when the application has been successfully received and validated in the system. If an
applicant receives an email from Grants.gov indicating the application was received and
subsequently validated, but does not receive an email from Grants.gov indicating that EDA has
retrieved the application within 72 hours of that email, the applicant may contact the appropriate
EDA representative listed in Section G of this announcement to inquire if EDA is in receipt of
the applicant’s submission.

It is the applicant’s responsibility to verify that its submission was timely received and
validated successfully at Grants.gov. To see the date and time your application was received, log
on to Grants.gov and click on the “Track My Application” link from the left-hand menu. For a
successful submission, the application must be received and validated by Grants.gov, and an
agency tracking number assigned. If your application has a status of “Received,” it is awaiting
validation by Grants.gov and has not yet been received by EDA. Once validation is complete, the
status will change to “Validated” or “Rejected with Errors.” If the status is “Rejected with
Errors,” an application has not been received successfully. For more detailed information on why
an application may be rejected, please see “Encountering Error Messages™ at
https://www.grants.gov/applicants/encountering-error-messages.html and “Frequently Asked
Questions by Applicants” at https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/applicants/applicant-fags.html.

Grants.gov systems issues. If you experience a Grants.gov systems issue (i.e., a
technical problem or glitch with the Grants.gov website) that you believe threatens your ability
to complete a submission before a deadline, please (i) print any error message received; (ii) call
the Grants.gov Contact Center at (800) 518-4726 for immediate assistance; and (iii) contact EDA
using the contact information in Section G. of this PWEAA NOFO. Applicants should obtain a
case number regarding their communications with Grants.gov. Please note that problems with an
applicant’s computer system or equipment are not considered systems issues. Similarly, an
applicant’s failure to, e.g., (i) complete the required registration, (ii) ensure that a registered
AOR submits the application, or (iii) notice receipt of an email message from Grants.gov are not
considered systems issues. A Grants.gov systems issue is an issue occurring in connection with
the operations of Grants.gov itself, such as the temporary loss of service by Grants.gov due to
unexpected volume of traffic or failure of information technology systems, both of which are
highly unlikely. In the event of a confirmed systems issue, EDA reserves the right to accept an
application in an alternate format.

Applicants should access the following link for assistance in navigating Grants.gov and
for a list of useful resources: http://www.grants.gov/web/grants/support.html. The following link
lists “Frequently Asked Questions by Applicants”: https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/
applicants/applicant-fags.html. If you do not find an answer to your question there, contact
Grants.gov by email at support@grants.gov or telephone at (800) 518-4726. The Grants.gov
Contact Center is open 24 hours a day, seven days a week, except on Federal holidays.

Page 42 of 45





Attachment 1. Certifications Regarding Federal Felony and Federal Criminal Tax
Convictions, Unpaid Federal Tax Assessments and Delinquent Federal Tax Returns

As discussed in Part I and Part II below, current Federal appropriations law contains certain
funding prohibitions and certification requirements applicable to financial assistance awards
issued with appropriated funds. Based on these requirements, DOC requires the following
certifications from prospective financial assistance award recipients (also referred to below as
applicants):

PART I-Certifications from Corporations

None of the appropriated funds made available by relevant appropriations Acts may be used to
issue a financial assistance to any corporation that:

(a) Was convicted of a felony criminal violation under any Federal law within the preceding
24 months, unless a Federal agency has considered suspension or debarment of the
corporation and made a determination that this further action is not necessary to protect
the interests of the Government; and/or

(b) Has any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for which all judicial and
administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is not being paid in
a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for collecting
the tax liability, unless a Federal agency has considered suspension or debarment of the
corporation and made a determination that this further action is not necessary to protect
the interests of the Government.

For purposes of the below certification, a corporation is defined as an entity that has filed articles
of incorporation in one of the fifty States, the District of Columbia, or the various territories of
the United States or associated independent republics including American Samoa, Federated
States of Micronesia, Guam, Midway Islands, Northern Mariana Islands, Puerto Rico, Republic
of Palau, Republic of the Marshall Islands, and the U.S. Virgin Islands. (Note that this includes
both for-profit and non-profit organizations.)

The below certification is required for all new financial assistance awards and for all
amendments to existing financial assistance awards, that are made to corporations (as defined
above) and that are funded with appropriated funds made available to the Department of
Commerce pursuant to relevant appropriations Acts. This certification is further required to the
extent that other appropriation Acts contain the same or substantively similar prohibitions against
the issuance of financial assistance awards to certain corporations.

Instructions: All recipients that are corporations (as defined above) must complete paragraphs (1)
and (2) below, which must be signed below by an authorized representative of the corporation.
Recipients that are not corporations are not required to complete this representation.

(1) [insert name of corporation] certifies that it is [1 is not [
(check one) a corporation that was convicted of a felony criminal violation under a Federal law
within the 24 months preceding the signature date of this Representation.

Page 43 of 45





(2) [insert name of corporation] certifies that it is [1 is not [
(check one) a corporation that has any unpaid Federal tax liability that has been assessed, for
which all judicial and administrative remedies have been exhausted or have lapsed, and that is
not being paid in a timely manner pursuant to an agreement with the authority responsible for
collecting the tax liability.

By:
[Typed name and title of the signing individual]
[Typed phone number of the signing individual]
[Typed email address of the signing individual]

Date:

PART II-Certifications for Awards Over $5 Million

For financial assistance awards in excess of $5 million, the Department of Commerce is required
to obtain written certification from all recipients that:

(a) To the best of its knowledge and belief, the recipient has filed all Federal tax returns
required during the three years preceding the certification;

(b) The recipient has not been convicted of a criminal offense under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986; and/or

(¢) The recipient has not, more than 90 days prior to certification, been notified of any
unpaid Federal tax assessment for which the liability remains unsatisfied, unless the
assessment is the subject of an installment agreement or offer in compromise that
has been approved by the Internal Revenue Service and is not in default, or the
assessment is the subject of a non-frivolous administrative or judicial proceeding.

The below certification is required from all recipients receiving financial assistance awards in
excess of $5 million and funded with applicable appropriations. This certification is further
required to the extent that other appropriation acts contain the same or substantively similar
prohibitions against the issuance of financial assistance to certain recipients of financial
assistance awards in excess of $5 million.

Instructions: All applicants receiving financial assistance awards in excess of $5 million and
funded with applicable appropriations must complete paragraphs (1), (2) and (3) below, which
must be signed below by an authorized representative of the applicant.

(1) [insert name of applicant] certifies that it has [1 has not [
(check one) filed all Federal tax returns required during the three years preceding this
certification;

Page 44 of 45





(2) [insert name of applicant] certifies that it has [1 has not [
(check one) been convicted of a criminal offense under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended; and/or

3) [insert name of applicant] certifies that it has [1 has not [
(check one) been notified, more than 90 days prior to this certification, of any Federal tax
assessment for which liability remains unsatisfied, unless the assessment is the subject of an
installment agreement or offer in compromise that has been approved by the Internal Revenue
Service and is not in default, or the assessment is the subject of a non-frivolous administrative or
judicial proceeding.

By:
[Typed name and title of the signing individual]
[Typed phone number of the signing individual]
[Typed email address of the signing individual]

Date:

Page 45 of 45





Addendum to the FY 2020 Public Works and Economic Adjustment Assistance
Notice of Funding Opportunity (FY20 PWEAA NOFO)
for the Economic Development Administration’s (EDA)’s Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic
Security Act (CARES Act) Recovery Assistance

EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance is an agency effort to assist communities impacted by the
coronavirus pandemic.' The pandemic has caused, and will continue to cause, economic injury to U.S.
regions and communities in devastating and unprecedented ways.

EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance is designed to provide a wide-range of financial assistance to
communities and regions as they respond to, and recover from, the impacts of the coronavirus pandemic.
Under this announcement, EDA solicits applications under the authority of its Economic Adjustment
Assistance (EAA) program, which is intended to be flexible and responsive to the economic development
needs and priorities of local and regional stakeholders.

Through the EAA program, EDA provides investments that support a wide range of non-construction and
construction activities, including Revolving Loan Funds, in regions experiencing severe economic
dislocations, such as those brought about by the coronavirus pandemic. As part of CARES Act Recovery
Assistance, EDA will also fund projects that qualify for EAA funding but are similar to the kinds of
projects funded under other EDA programs, such as Public Works, Research and National Technical
Assistance, Planning, Local Technical Assistance, University Centers, and Build to Scale (formerly
Regional Innovation Strategies (RIS)).? In addition to projects with a regional focus, EDA anticipates
making awards for projects of national scope as part of this funding opportunity.

In general, except as discussed below, EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance serves as an addendum to
and follows the same rules as the FY 2020 Public Works and Economic Adjustment Assistance Notice of
Funding Opportunity (FY20 PWEAA NOFO) (link below). For more information, please see EDA’s
website at https://www.eda.gov/programs/eda-programs/ or contact the EDA representative for your
region who can be found at https://www.eda.gov/contact/.

Funding Availability

The CARES Act (P.L. 116-136) provided EDA with $1,500,000,000, to remain available until
September 30, 2022, to “prevent, prepare for, and respond to coronavirus, ... including for necessary
expenses for responding to economic injury as a result of coronavirus.” EDA intends to make these funds
available through the EAA program using the existing procedures specified in the FY20 PWEAA NOFO
(link below).” Under the EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance addendum, EDA expects on a case-
by-case basis to receive applications that exceed the historical averages described in section B.1 of the
FY20 PWEAA NOFO.

! Section 23005 of the CARES Act, Pub. L. 116-136 (March 27, 2020), defines “coronavirus” as “SARS—CoV-2 or
another coronavirus with pandemic potential.”

2 Only applicants who are eligible to receive funding under the Economic Adjustment Assistance program are
eligible to receive grants under EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance. EDA will work to ensure that its funding
is not duplicative of other Federal assistance through grant conditions and certifications by applicants as well as
recipients of RLF loans.

3 To expedite funding to affected communities and regions, EDA may invite existing or past grantees, such as
Economic Development Districts currently in receipt of Partnership Planning awards, operators of existing
EDA-funded Revolving Loan Funds, and EDA-funded University Centers, to apply using specific procedures. EDA
will independently contact such grantees with instructions.





EDA has allocated $1,467,000,000* in supplemental program funds among its offices as follows:

Atlanta Regional Office — $248,000,000
Austin Regional Office — $236,000,000
Chicago Regional Office — $225,000,000
Denver Regional Office — $193,000,000
Philadelphia Regional Office — $259,000,000
Seattle Regional Office — $266,000,000
Headquarters — $40,000,000

Note: When appropriate, EDA may exercise its discretion to adjust the allocations to its offices
based on its experience in administering the supplemental appropriations to ensure funds are used
to maximum effect, or to adjust to unforeseen changes in recovery efforts.

Eligible Applicants
Eligible applicants under the EAA program include a(n):

a. District Organization;

Indian Tribe or a consortium of Indian Tribes;

c. State, county, city, or other political subdivision of a State, including a special purpose unit of a
State or local government engaged in economic or infrastructure development activities, or a
consortium of political subdivisions;

Institution of higher education or a consortium of institutions of higher education; or

e. Public or private non-profit organization or association acting in cooperation with officials of a

political subdivision of a State.

EAA Program and Application Requirements for EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance

The following EAA program requirements are specific to EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance. This
is an addendum to the FY20 PWEAA NOFO (link below), and unless otherwise stated below, the
requirements of the FY20 PWEAA NOFO apply. Please see the FY20 PWEAA NOFO for information
on other EAA program requirements, award information, and the content and form of application
submissions.

CARES Act Recovery Assistance Projects

Successful applications will enable affected communities to respond to the impacts of the coronavirus
pandemic by supporting affected businesses and communities, including by providing technical assistance
to retain existing and hire new employees; by providing a range of skills-training and workforce
development projects to help employees compete for high-quality jobs; and by developing and
implementing strategies to diversify regional economies to create jobs in new or existing industries. EAA
investments are designed to help communities catalyze public-private partnerships to foster collaboration,
attract investment, create jobs, and foster economic resiliency and prosperity. Examples of projects that
may be funded through CARES Act Recovery Assistance include economic recovery planning and
preparing technical strategies to address economic dislocations caused by the coronavirus pandemic,

4 Congress authorized up to $30,000,000 to cover EDA’s administrative and oversight activities related to these
awards and a transfer of $3,000,000 to the Department of Commerce’s Office of the Inspector General for related
investigations and audits.





preparing or updating resiliency plans to respond to future pandemics, implementing entrepreneurial
support programs to diversify economies, and constructing public works and facilities that will support
economic recovery, including the deployment of broadband for purposes including supporting telehealth
and remote learning for job skills.

Economic Distress Criteria and Special Need: Pandemic Response Requirement

Section C.3. of the FY20 PWEAA NOFO (starting on pg. 13) sets out the economic distress criteria for
the EAA program, including “Special Need” criteria. EDA has determined that economic injury from the
coronavirus pandemic constitutes a “Special Need,” and eligibility may be established on that basis
without reference to the other economic distress criteria specified in the FY20 PWEAA NOFO. This
determination of nationwide eligibility for these funds is consistent with the President’s March 13, 2020
Proclamation on Declaring a National Emergency Concerning the Novel Coronavirus Disease (COVID-
19) Outbreak that established a national emergency for all states, tribes, territories, local governments,
and the District of Columbia (https://www.fema.gov/news-release/2020/03/13/covid-19-emergency-
declaration).

To be eligible for funding under EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance, applicants must explain
clearly in their application how the proposed project would “prevent, prepare for, and respond to
coronavirus” or respond to “economic injury as a result of coronavirus.” This explanation is required to
assist reviewers in understanding how a proposed project aligns with the goals of EDA’s CARES Act
Recovery Assistance. For example, if Smith County has experienced significant small business closures
as a result of the pandemic, Smith County must demonstrate how the project addresses small business
recovery and resilience priorities and objectives established under a Comprehensive Economic
Development Strategy (CEDS) or other strategy acceptable to EDA (see below for information on
strategy requirements). Projects that consider economic recovery in general must address the direct
consequences of the coronavirus pandemic itself and how the project will contribute the community’s’
recovery and resiliency. The extent to which a proposed project responds to needs caused by the
coronavirus pandemic is one factor that EDA will consider when evaluating applications for
funding.

Cost Sharing or Matching

Section C.2. of the FY20 PWEAA NOFO (starting on pg. 11) sets out the cost sharing requirements for
EDA projects. For EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance, given the extent of the economic impact and
in accordance with the agency’s statutory authority under Section 703 of the Public Works and Economic
Development Act of 1965 (PWEDA) (42 U.S.C. § 3233), EDA generally expects to fund at least 80%,
and up to 100%, of eligible project costs. In determining whether to fund a project’s Federal share above
80%, EDA’s Grants Officers in the applicable Regional Office will consider on a case-by-case basis
whether the circumstances of the proposed project warrant a Federal share in excess of 80%, including
whether the applicant has exhausted its effective taxing or borrowing capacity, the extent of the impact of
the coronavirus pandemic on the region, or whether the region meets other thresholds for elevated need
based on the relative economic distress of the region. Additionally, EDA may establish a maximum
investment rate of up to 100% for projects of Indian Tribes. Any portion of the costs for the EDA scope
of work funded below 100% must be borne by the recipient or provided to the recipient by a third party as
a contribution for the purposes of and subject to the terms of the award.

The applicant is responsible for demonstrating to EDA that a grant rate above 80% is justified by
providing statistics and other appropriate information on the nature and level of economic distress in the





region, including information regarding other recovery-related needs facing the region and the level of
resources available to address those needs.

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) Requirements

Except for a “Strategy Grant” to develop, update, or refine a CEDS, each project must be consistent with
the region’s current CEDS or equivalent EDA-accepted regional economic development strategy that
meets EDA’s CEDS or strategy requirements. Please see Section A.3. of the FY20 PWEAA NOFO
(starting on pg. 5) for more information on CEDS requirements. In addition, in accordance with

13 CFR § 303.7(c)(1), in certain circumstances EDA may accept a non-EDA-funded CEDS that does not
contain all the elements EDA requires of a CEDS.’

Application Information, Review and Selection Process, and Link to FY20 PWEAA NOFO

Applications are accepted on a rolling basis. Unless otherwise directed by EDA, all applicants for
CARES Act Recovery Assistance must follow instructions included within the FY20 PWEAA NOFO,
which can be found on:

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppld=321695. As necessary, each EDA
Regional Office will periodically convene investment review committees (IRCs) that consist of at least
three EDA staff members. After EDA determines an application is complete, it will be reviewed by the
IRC, which will make a recommendation to the Grants Officer regarding funding.®

Along with other controlling law, EDA’s CARES Act Recovery Assistance awards will be governed by
the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements as set forth in

2 C.F.R. part 200. For additional information, please contact the EDA representative for your region who
can be found at https://www.eda.gov/contact/. Applicants should note that the Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) has provided flexibility with respect to System of Award Management (SAM) registration
at the time of application; however, at the time of award, the requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.205, Federal
awarding agency review of risk posed by applicants, will continue to apply, including the requirement for
SAM registration. In addition, current registrants in SAM with active registrations that expire before May
16, 2020 will be afforded an automatic one-time extension of 60 days.

Instructions for Applicants:

- Download the FY20 PWEAA Notice of Funding Opportunity (NOFO) and application package from
https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppld=321695.

- In Form ED-900, section B.3.b., include a description of the economic impacts in the region from the
coronavirus pandemic and describe how the proposed project scope of work will respond to those impacts
and support pandemic recovery and resilience efforts. Applicants may also provide a separate narrative
statement, not to exceed one page in length, of the economic impacts in the region from the coronavirus
pandemic and how the proposed project scope of work responds to those impacts.

- Additionally, in Form ED-900, section B.6, explain how the proposed project would meet EDA’s
Recovery and Resilience investment priority, which all CARES Act Recovery Assistance projects are
expected to meet. You may also explain in this space how the proposed projects will meet any of EDA’s
other investment priorities.

5 In doing so, EDA shall consider the circumstances surrounding the application for Investment Assistance,
including emergencies or natural disasters and the fulfillment of the requirements of section 302 of PWEDA.
See 13 C.F.R. § 302.2 (“When non-statutory EDA administrative or procedural conditions for Investment
Assistance awards under PWEDA cannot be met by an Eligible Applicant as the result of a disaster, EDA may
waive such conditions.”).





Consultation with Regional Office

As with all EDA funding opportunities, prospective applicants are strongly encouraged to contact their
applicable EDA Regional Office representatives to discuss their needs and project plans to help further
refine the scope and intended outcomes of proposed projects. Prospective applicants can find current
contact information for EDA Regional Office staff at https://www.eda.gov/contact/.






		FY20 PWEAA NOFO including NCC and CARES

		EDA CARES Act Recovery Assistance - Final Cleared




sseamans@bfcog.us | 509.943.9185 | www.bfcog.us

BFCG fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes and regulations in all programs
and activities. For more information or to obtain a Title VI Complaint Form call (509) 943-9185 or online at

www.bfcog.us.

This institution is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

From: U.S. Economic Development Administration [mailto:edanews@updates.eda.gov]

Sent: Thursday, May 07, 2020 7:51 AM

To: Stephanie Seamans <SSeamans@bfcog.us>

Subject: U.S. Department of Commerce Announces Availability of $1.5 Billion in CARES Act Funds to
Aid Communities Impacted by the Coronavirus Pandemic

Having trouble viewing this email? View it as a Web page.

EDA Update

Thursday, May 7, 2020

U.S. Secretary of Commerce Wilbur Ross today announced that the Department’s Economic
Development Administration (EDA) is now accepting applications from eligible grantees for
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) supplemental funds (EDA
CARES Act Recovery Assistance) intended to help communities prevent, prepare for, and
respond to coronavirus.

“President Trump is working tirelessly to make sure Americans stay safe during this crisis


mailto:sseamans@bfcog.us
file:////c/www.bfcog.us
http://www.bfcog.us/
mailto:edanews@updates.eda.gov
mailto:SSeamans@bfcog.us
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NvbnRlbnQuZ292ZGVsaXZlcnkuY29tL2FjY291bnRzL1VTRURBL2J1bGxldGlucy8yOGE0ZjlkIn0.1oxGhhrwe2lwlQIHC2e-9a8Qovo81ckadEvheojEKMY/br/78360204151-l

and that our economy is loaded to spring back when this global scourge recedes,” said
Commerce Secretary Wilbur Ross. “EDA CARES Act Recovery Assistance funds will
support the long-term recovery of communities across the nation that have been impacted
by the coronavirus pandemic.”

“EDA’'s CARES Act Recovery Assistance is designed to provide a wide-range of financial
assistance to communities and regions as they respond to and recover from the impacts of
this pandemic,” said Dana Gartzke, Performing the Delegated Duties of the
Assistant Secretary of Commerce for Economic Development. “We intend to
deploy our CARES Act funding as quickly, effectively, and efficiently as possible, and in a
manner that meets the needs of our communities.”

On March 27, 2020, President Donald J. Trump signed the $2 trillion CARES Act into law.
The CARES Act provides EDA with $1.5 billion of which $1.467 billion is available for grant
making. The remaining funds will be transferred to cover salaries and expenses and
oversight activities.

The Secretary’s announcement comes as EDA has published an Addendum to its Fiscal Year
2020 Public Works and Economic Adjustment Assistance Notice of Funding Opportunity
(FY20 PWEAA NOFO) making the funds available.

Under this announcement, EDA will make CARES Act Recovery Assistance grants under the
authority of its Economic Adjustment Assistance (EAA) program, which is intended to be
flexible and responsive to the economic development needs and priorities of local and
regional stakeholders.

EDA CARES Act Recovery Assistance investments will support a wide range of non-
construction and construction activities, including Revolving Loan Funds, in regions across
the country experiencing severe economic dislocations brought about by the coronavirus
pandemic.

Examples of projects that EDA may fund through its CARES Act Recovery Assistance
include economic recovery planning and preparing technical assistance strategies to address
economic dislocations caused by the coronavirus pandemic, preparing or updating
resiliency plans to respond to future pandemics, implementing entrepreneurial support
programs to diversify economies, and constructing public works and facilities that will
support economic recovery, including the deployment of broadband for purposes including
supporting telehealth and remote learning for job skills.

Eligible applicants under the EAA program include a(n):

¢ District Organization;

¢ Indian Tribe or a consortium of Indian Tribes;

e State, county, city, or other political subdivision of a State, including a special
purpose unit of a State or local government engaged in economic or infrastructure
development activities, or a consortium of political subdivisions;

¢ Institution of higher education or a consortium of institutions of higher education; or

e Public or private non-profit organization or association acting in cooperation with


https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy53aGl0ZWhvdXNlLmdvdi9icmllZmluZ3Mtc3RhdGVtZW50cy9yZW1hcmtzLXByZXNpZGVudC10cnVtcC1zaWduaW5nLWgtci03NDgtY2FyZXMtYWN0Lz91dG1fY29udGVudD0mdXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fbmFtZT0mdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSZ1dG1fdGVybT0ifQ.YnyMCHPCHsmP9jm0mYZp6a35igC0rCZpVhKIoBnpvts/br/78360204151-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5ncmFudHMuZ292L3dlYi9ncmFudHMvdmlldy1vcHBvcnR1bml0eS5odG1sP29wcElkPTMyMTY5NSZ1dG1fY29udGVudD0mdXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fbmFtZT0mdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSZ1dG1fdGVybT0ifQ.pkdVW5KOuU5Ce9I3zXXwUyPcnsJvKXkD3lFd9kTwtS8/br/78360204151-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDMsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5lZGEuZ292L3BkZi9hYm91dC9FY29ub21pYy1BZGp1c3RtZW50LUFzc2lzdGFuY2UtUHJvZ3JhbS0xLVBhZ2VyLnBkZj91dG1fY29udGVudD0mdXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fbmFtZT0mdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSZ1dG1fdGVybT0ifQ.UBx_YDRQVQ8LL9l29Y3CC77VVY7O6otr20gQDAoz_tY/br/78360204151-l

officials of a political subdivision of a State.

For more information, please visit the EDA CARES Act Recovery Assistance page.
EDA Footer

Stay Connected with U.S. Economic Development Administration

SUBSCRIBER SERVICES:
Manage Subscriptions | Unsubscribe All | Help | Privacy Policy

This email was sent to sseamans@bfcog.us using GovDelivery Communications Cloud on behalf of: U.S.
Economic Development Administration - 1401 Constitution Avenue NW - Suite 71014 - Washington, DC
20230


https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDQsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwOi8vd3d3LmVkYS5nb3YvY29yb25hdmlydXMvP3V0bV9jb250ZW50PSZ1dG1fbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnV0bV9uYW1lPSZ1dG1fc291cmNlPWdvdmRlbGl2ZXJ5JnV0bV90ZXJtPSJ9.L6LpxNBZ1IposHEPc84R94Qz4V0TCeogTKkS7zCX4TE/br/78360204151-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDUsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5mYWNlYm9vay5jb20vZWRhLmNvbW1lcmNlP3V0bV9jb250ZW50PSZ1dG1fbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnV0bV9uYW1lPSZ1dG1fc291cmNlPWdvdmRlbGl2ZXJ5JnV0bV90ZXJtPSJ9.WRMYGI-XoLb9kLnN5OD4F845qHqXrLdihLAZsuYruJI/br/78360204151-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDYsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3R3aXR0ZXIuY29tL1VTX0VEQT91dG1fY29udGVudD0mdXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fbmFtZT0mdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSZ1dG1fdGVybT0ifQ.wMIazMjb_btxTqQlgZ3LIW1C-Oyz6V8B7Rmv3o9clOY/br/78360204151-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3B1YmxpYy5nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeS5jb20vYWNjb3VudHMvVVNFREEvc3Vic2NyaWJlci9lZGl0P3ByZWZlcmVuY2VzPXRydWUjdGFiMSJ9.J8c_LLBNcou5hE-jZnEe8f_a2kGT-XIeCG0NdsF7vYE/br/78360204151-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3B1YmxpYy5nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeS5jb20vYWNjb3VudHMvVVNFREEvc3Vic2NyaWJlci9lZGl0P3ByZWZlcmVuY2VzPXRydWUjdGFiMSJ9.PcdiMtImIDvVeDO6vnHPsAuC8uEtvaJDA6V2mlijNwg/br/78360204151-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInF1ZXJ5X3BhcmFtcyI6WyJ2ZXJpZmljYXRpb24iLCJkZXN0aW5hdGlvbiJdLCJ1cmkiOiJicDI6Y2xpY2siLCJidWxsZXRpbl9pZCI6IjIwMjAwNTA3LjIxMTc5MTgxIiwidXJsIjoiaHR0cHM6Ly9wdWJsaWMuZ292ZGVsaXZlcnkuY29tL2FjY291bnRzL1VTRURBL3N1YnNjcmliZXIvb25lX2NsaWNrX3Vuc3Vic2NyaWJlIn0.75SU-HsiCV7IL44FP9HZuJ7RLf8YWriBXKKThQZ1LDw/br/78360204151-l?verification=5.d74c45811a64527376bfa335a2e10955&destination=sseamans%40bfcog.us
mailto:edanews@eda.gov
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy5jb21tZXJjZS5nb3YvcGFnZS9wcml2YWN5LXBvbGljeT91dG1fY29udGVudD0mdXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fbmFtZT0mdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSZ1dG1fdGVybT0ifQ._VPxA7pn1_uUerIN3D1WNydXfYmaM338aMqmVNt3Y5M/br/78360204151-l
mailto:sseamans@bfcog.us
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMDA1MDcuMjExNzkxODEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3N1YnNjcmliZXJoZWxwLmdyYW5pY3VzLmNvbS8_dXRtX2NvbnRlbnQ9JnV0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX25hbWU9JnV0bV9zb3VyY2U9Z292ZGVsaXZlcnkmdXRtX3Rlcm09In0.1nmvGrfM2h3DZjaG1g5xvXWASH7YI9NQxQaz2LAEKVc/br/78360204151-l

	05-12-2020 Preliminary Agenda Packet - Website.pdf
	05-12-2020 Warrants.pdf
	Warrant_Registers.pdf
	4-30-20 Warrant Register
	Warrant Register

	5-12-20 Warrant Register






